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Introduction
In 2013-14, our third year of operation, the Environmental
Protection Authority’s role as a national environmental
regulator expanded markedly as we addressed our new
responsibilities in the Exclusive Economic Zone and
Continental Shelf (EEZ). We continued our work to protect
people and the environment, ensuring that, at the same
time, New Zealand can continue to develop economically,
culturally and socially. To this end we:
received six EEZ applications including holding our first
hearing for a marine consent application
streamlined and improved more mature functions such
as the processing of hazardous substances applications
undertook an effective campaign to address the
low levels of hazardous substance compliance
in the workplace
prepared for the transfer for some of our regulatory
responsibilities for hazardous substances to WorkSafe
New Zealand (WorkSafe)
built our capability to undertake our new enforcement
and compliance responsibilities
contributed to the Ministry for the Environment’s
review of the Hazardous Substances and New
Organisms Act (HSNO)
managed seven applications for nationally significant
proposals under the Resource Management Act (RMA),
our largest annual work load of the kind to date
maintained confidence in the Emissions Trading
Scheme’s integrity and service delivery, while also
planning the redevelopment of the New Zealand
Emission Unit Register
strengthened and built relationships with government,
industry, Māori and other communities across all the
EPA’s functions
reviewed and adopted a new organisational strategy.
We participated in, and helped represent New Zealand’s
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interests in, the work of international bodies dealing with
climate change, chemicals regulations, the management
of chemicals and ozone-depleting substances governed
by international conventions, and the regulation of
hazardous substances, hazardous waste, and new
organisms. We have also increased our international
connections to other state bodies with responsibility for
offshore petroleum and mineral regulation.
We seek knowledge and experience from New Zealand
and internationally that we can adapt and build on for
our unique conditions. To this end, we have engaged
extensively this year with other government agencies
in the natural resources sector, and met and spoken
with various communities, Māori, non-governmental
organisations and private industry about matters of shared
interest.
It is not possible to satisfy all those who have an interest in
the diverse areas the EPA regulates, but we are committed
to continuing the conversations. Other viewpoints add
to our understanding of how to improve our regulatory
work and help us reach objective and robust decisions.
We would like to thank all those agencies, organisations
and people who have engaged with the projects we
have worked on during the year and contributed to the
outcomes achieved.
The EPA improved its capability and capacity as an
organisation this year. We employed skilled and experienced
staff in the new functions of EEZ decision making and
compliance, as well as in our other technical functions. We
have also worked on staff engagement and professional
development, to retain and build expertise and experience
across the organisation. Some of our internal systems
were upgraded during the year, and other improvements
are planned. The new EPA Strategy will ensure we remain
sharply focused on our strategic intentions.
Following the completion of our third year, we are being
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reviewed by our monitoring department, the Ministry for
the Environment, in response to a Cabinet directive made
at the time of the decision to establish the EPA. The review
is due to be completed by December 2014. We expect that
it will inform our planning and continuous improvement
processes, as well as benchmarking our performance
against similar regulatory authorities both in New Zealand
and overseas.

None of our achievements this year could have been
realised without the dedicated focus and sheer hard work
of our Chief Executive, senior management team, staff
and Board. This year the Annual Report highlights some
of our people and their work. They are representative
of the skilled team that ensures the robust operation of
environmental regulation and its clear communication,
for the benefit of all New Zealanders.

Kerry Prendergast
Chair
Environmental Protection Authority

Kevin Thompson
Deputy Chair
Environmental Protection Authority

31 October 2014

31 October 2014

Rob Forlong
Chief Executive
Environmental Protection Authority
31 October 2014
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Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao korero
Me wehi ki te Atua, I pay homage to our Creator.
Me whakahōnore te Kīngi Tuheitia, pai mārire ki te Kāhui
Ariki whānui tonu, I honour King Tuheitia and, indeed,
blessings on his entire family.
Kei ngā mate huhua o te wā, haere, haere, hoki atu rā, I bid
farewell to the many deceased of the times.
Kei ngā iwi, kei ngā hapū, ngā kāwai rangatira, kei ngā
kaitiaki taiao huri noa o te motu, koinei kē te mihi māhaki a
Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao ki a koutou, tēnā koutou katoa.
Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao greets all of the tribes, sub-tribes,
chiefs, and environmental guardians throughout the land.
Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao (Ngā Kaihautū) is the
statutory Māori Advisory Committee to the Environmental
Protection Authority (EPA) established by the EPA Act 2011
to provide advice and assistance to the EPA on matters
relating to policy, process and decision making.
Ngā Kaihautū does not speak on behalf of all, or any
particular, whānau, hapū or iwi. It is not the voice of
Māori but rather ensures that Māori have a voice.
Ngā Kaihautū acts as a process guardian and advises
the EPA Board on the timely, appropriate and effective
incorporation of Māori perspectives in EPA functions and
decision making. To do this we work closely with the
EPA through contributing to, monitoring and evaluating
policies, processes, applications and decisions from a
Māori perspective. Part of this responsibility includes
providing guidance and oversight to the development
of organisational and decision-making approaches
that support the effective recognition of the unique
relationship of Māori to the New Zealand environment.
In the last year we were delighted to have been able to
support the development of He Whetū Mārama – that
provides a framework to guide the EPA in undertaking its
statutory and other obligations to Māori. This framework
sits alongside the EPA Strategy and will inform the
organisation’s approach moving forward.
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Over the last 12 months we have noted two key
trends with implications for the implementation of the
organisation’s regulatory functions in the long term. Firstly
it is an ongoing issue for Māori to be able to interact
effectively with regulatory processes in a meaningful
way to ensure appropriate consideration of applications
likely to affect their interests. Both Māori and industry
are constantly challenged by limitations in capacity and
capability to facilitate effective engagement that provides
for truly informed decision making.
Secondly, iwi have always been passionate submitters
and consultees to environmental decision making, but
increasingly they are participating across the broader
regulatory spectrum. For example over the last year
we have had iwi organisations as applicant, investor,
collaborator, and submitter in applications to the EPA.
Although early days, this may require a closer look at
the regulatory regime to ensure the interests of parties
continue to be appropriately provided for.
The final word must be for the many kaitiaki working at the
flax roots to ensure decisions strike an appropriate balance
between environmental, cultural, economic, health and
wellbeing, and Treaty of Waitangi concerns. Thank you to
those who continue to be committed to contributing to
the EPA’s decision making. Mei kore ake ko koutou, tē taea
e mātou te anga whakamua – without your efforts Ngā
Kaihautū and the EPA would struggle to do its job.
Mā nāianei, mā ngā uri whakatupu, kia mau, kia ū!

Tipene Wilson
Tumuaki – Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao.

Part A

2013-14: The
year in review
This section outlines how our work
over the past year has contributed to
our strategy and intended results
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The year in review
Introduction
The 2013-14 year included some significant milestones
in our development as an agency. Our major new
responsibility as the decision-making authority for marine
consenting in the EEZ has been implemented and the
first notified marine consent decided by the Decisionmaking Committee. At the year-end there were five
other applications under consideration. EEZ compliance
requirements were also developed during the year, and
experienced staff recruited, ready for our new compliance
and enforcement role in this area.
As part of several cross-government initiatives to
improve the environmental management system and
reduce workplace harm from hazardous substances, we
continued working on the project to update and amend
the HSNO Act to make it fit for purpose for the future, and
also on the changes arising from reform of the Health and
Safety legislation. In particular, we worked with WorkSafe
to prepare for the transfer of some functions from the
EPA to WorkSafe in September 2014 by delegation (with
legal accountability being transferred in April 2015 when
the new Workplace Health and Safety Act comes into
force). We began preparing for our new regulatory and
compliance responsibilities with respect to the import and
manufacture of hazardous substances, which will occur in
the coming year. We also created and distributed a lot of
simple, clear information to industry on how to manage
hazardous substances safely.
During the year, the EPA Board approved the redevelopment
of the New Zealand Emission Unit Register and new
support arrangements that will mean we can more
effectively meet security and privacy requirements and
adapt more easily to changes in the future. The new
system will also be easier to use. The new register will align
with the Government’s Key Result Areas 9 and 10 and will
use shared services such as RealMe™. The upgrade is a
major undertaking which was progressing smoothly at
the end of the year, and is due for completion in 2015.
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The EPA Board approved a refreshed four-year strategy for
the organisation during the year. This has given us clarity
around our strategic priorities and budget requirements. We
analysed our key cost drivers, with particular attention to
cost recovery and the timing of revenue. A more complex
financial environment has meant that our need to invest
in robust financial and business systems has become
pressing, and the year has seen the planning and contract
development for a new financial management information
system which, when implemented in 2014-15, will give
us far better information for our planning, reporting and
decision making.
The completion of our third year of operation has given us
the opportunity to review our progress so far, and look to
the future.

Alignment of our work with
Government priorities
The Government’s priorities for the 2013-14 year were:
to manage the Government’s finances responsibly
to help to build a more productive and
competitive economy
to deliver better public services within tight
financial constraints.
In addition, the Ministers’ expectations for the
year included:
ensuring that workplace harm due to hazardous
substances is reduced in the short, medium and long
term by developing tools, simplifying controls and
ensuring a smooth transition of functions to
WorkSafe New Zealand
implementing regulations under the EEZ Act to ensure
systems and processes are efficient and cost effective,
while employing robust decision-making processes
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continuing to build and nurture relationships with
others, especially Māori, industry and other agencies,
and to work closely with them to ensure the
environmental management system is as effective
and efficient as possible
constantly looking for ways to improve how we operate
and deliver value for money
being proactive in ensuring people understand their
obligations, know about the guidance materials, and
also ensure new guidance material is developed.
There is an expectation that we operate with appropriate
performance measures that demonstrate the difference
we are making, for applicants, other stakeholders and the
wider public of New Zealand.
At the same time we are committed to working with
other government agencies, such as the Ministry for the
Environment, the Ministry of Business, Innovation and
Employment (MBIE), the Ministry for Primary Industries
(MPI), Maritime New Zealand and WorkSafe New Zealand
in the natural resources sector, and taking advantage of
shared services across the government sector wherever
appropriate. We also have a statutory responsibility
to work with the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade
(MFAT) on environmental impact assessments for
activities in Antarctica.

Working efficiently
After a lengthy review of processes we have streamlined and
improved processing of HSNO applications while ensuring
that we demonstrate international best practice in our
decision making.
The workload of seven applications for nationally
significant proposals and six for EEZ consents was high
this year. As envisaged when the EPA was established,
we made efficient use of the similarities in the various
application processes and deployed staff flexibly across
the two functions to achieve our statutory responsibilities
and our work programme.

Over the past year, we have had to perform to a
high standard on the world stage as well as fulfil our
responsibilities within New Zealand. For example, the
New Zealand Emission Unit Register operated by the
EPA is connected to the International Transaction Log
(ITL) run by the United Nations Framework Convention
on Climate Change (UNFCCC). The ITL monitors all Kyoto
transactions and facilitates the trading of carbon units
between registries. We are required to meet its standards
to maintain our connection as an international registry. We
have participated in a number of forums, work groups and
disaster recovery tests with the ITL. We also have robust
and responsive procedures to deal with reconciliation
issues between the New Zealand Emission Unit Register
and ITL. We have received positive feedback from the ITL
administrator regarding the high level of engagement and
cooperation they have received from New Zealand.
There were 26 internal and external secondments for staff
with key skills during the year, to ensure that skills were
utilised most efficiently internally and across the sector.
As well as doing the preparatory planning for a new
financial management system during the year, we
implemented new business systems across several
operational areas. We upgraded the electronic document
management and relationship management systems ,
and moved our production servers into an Infrastructure
as a Service (IAAS) environment.
To improve our external and internal communication,
we reviewed the usability and technical fitness-for-purpose
of the EPA website and began to plan improvements.
The website content was progressively improved in
2013-14. The intranet will be redeveloped in the
2014-15 year.
We benchmark our performance and review our
efficiency regularly through formal surveys, informal
feedback, and review of the ‘lessons learnt’ as projects
are completed.

2013-14: The year in review
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Working effectively
For the EPA, working effectively means improving the
long-term outcomes for people and the environment.
Results are not always observable in the short or medium
term. During the 2013-14 year, however, we have seen
progress in some of our projects.
To reduce workplace harm and low levels of compliance
with core hazardous substance safety rules, we worked
with industry and across government to improve
safety. We created and distributed more than 12,000
hazardous substances ‘toolboxes’ – a package of posters,
safety videos, an emergency response plan template, a
calculator tool, a workbook and a plain English guide to
help businesses work safely with hazardous substances in
the workplace. This was complemented by online, radio,
magazine and billboard promotion of the dangers of not
managing hazardous substances safely. A subsequent
survey of people who had received the toolbox showed
that the material was well-received, with 86 percent of
businesses agreeing that the toolbox was “exactly what
the business needs”. Nearly half of the businesses that
received the toolbox took action to improve their safety
procedures as a result.
During the year we continued our work developing
and clarifying the HSNO Act, including planning for
‘EPA Notices’, a simplified form of regulation, to ensure
flexible and efficient ways of updating often complex
regulatory requirements.
We published and distributed guidance for users of
aquatic herbicides, organophosphates, antifouling
paints, and poisons for killing pests such as rats, stoats,
possums, rabbits and feral pigs. We worked together with
industry to produce information for collision repair shops,
agrichemical users and embalmers.
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After aerial 1080 operations for pest control had been
monitored for five years by ERMA New Zealand and
the EPA, we looked back on the information gathered.
We concluded that the controls on aerial 1080 use are
working as intended and that a further reassessment is
not needed. The five year review shows that the tighter
management regime is working and there have been
significant improvements in aerial use of 1080, and in
communication with affected communities. Breaches
of legal requirements have reduced over the five year
period and water quality remains unaffected. 1080 remains
the only viable option to control pests in our native
ecosystems and to control bovine tuberculosis.
Zoo animals are classed as “new organisms” under the
HSNO Act. In July 2013 we set new rules for keeping
animals (not including butterflies, fish and marine
invertebrates) in zoos. The change means that a
standard set of rules applies to all animals approved for
containment in zoos. The review followed an application
by the Zoo and Aquarium Association and the decision
on new rules was contributed to by many organisations
including the Department of Conservation, the Ministry
for Primary Industries, Auckland, Hamilton and Wellington
Zoos and Orana Wildlife Park in Christchurch, the National
Animal Welfare Advisory Committee, and Save Animals
From Exploitation (SAFE).
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Regulatory decision making
The EPA’s role is to receive applications and to support the
decision-making processes on many large and complex
matters. Given this, it is expected that some decisions
will be challenged, particularly in the new and high
profile area of EEZ regulation in the next few years. Our
first decision under the EEZ regulatory framework was to
accept as complete an impact assessment by Anadarko,
made under the transitional provisions of the Act. Such
an assessment, under transitional provisions, does not
constitute an endorsement by the EPA of the quality of
the impact assessment, or the merits of the activity. The
decision was challenged in the High Court by Greenpeace
of New Zealand Incorporated. In this case the judge found
that we had a good understanding of our role and had
undertaken a careful and proper consideration of the
impact assessment.
We also made a decision on a publicly notified marine
consent application from Trans-Tasman Resources Ltd to
mine iron sands from the seabed off the South Taranaki
Bight. This application highlighted areas for improving
our processes. We re-notified the application because not
all of the information was available on our website at the
correct time and we wanted to ensure that any potential
submitter had full access to all relevant information. The
decision-making committee declined the application
on 18 June 2014. Trans-Tasman Resources Ltd has since
lodged an appeal with the High Court in Wellington.

Our day to day regulatory business, the consideration of
applications and the monitoring of compliance, can be
seen in the ‘Statement of Service Performance’ and ‘What
we did – by the numbers’ sections later in this report. This
work, while often eclipsed by the more high-profile major
applications for marine consents, or Boards of Inquiry into
nationally significant proposals, is the foundation of our
work as a regulatory authority. We processed 20 decisions
on new organisms, 115 applications in accordance with
Part 5 of the HSNO Act, 108 permits relating to ozonedepleting substances, and 66 permits for the import
or export of hazardous waste. In addition, there were
2,490 participants in the Emissions Trading Scheme,
including both non-forestry and forestry participants,
while there were 7,900 holding accounts at 30 June 2014.
Internationally, we have continued to work with other
countries and agencies across a variety of international
protocols and agreements. While often technical in
nature, our international work on, for example, hazardous
substances, hazardous waste and genetically modified
organisms ensures that we remain up to date with
international thinking and regulation. At the same time
we can contribute our own knowledge and experience
to the development of new international regulation and
controls. Examples during the year have included work on
brominated flame retardants, on mercury and on registries
for substances with global warming potential.

An EPA new organisms decision-making committee
determined in April 2013 that Zinc Finger Nuclease type 1
(ZFN-1) could be used without restriction. The Sustainability
Council of New Zealand appealed the EPA’s determination
to the High Court, which allowed the appeal and quashed
the Authority’s determination. This is the first appeal to
consider the scope of the Regulations (the Hazardous
Substances and New Organisms (Organisms Not Genetically
Modified) Regulations 1998). The decision has provided
clarity for interpreting the Regulations.

2013-14: The year in review
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Highlights of the year

Hazardous substances
We won the award for Best Plain English Document
in the 2013 WriteMark Plain English Awards for our
Hazardous Substances Toolbox handbook titled
Your Practical Guide: Working Safely with
Hazardous Substances.
We approved a new antibiotic (Kasumin) for plants that
can be used to control the kiwifruit vine disease, Psa.
We worked closely with the applicant to ensure the
process was robust and timely.
We are collaborating internationally for bee health
by recording bee incidents in New Zealand and
forwarding the information to the OECD, where it is
included in an international database of bee incidents.

New organisms
In August 2013 we approved the release of the white
admiral butterfly, Limenitis glorifica, for use as a
biological control agent against the weed
Japanese Honeysuckle.
A reassessment of all existing HSNO Act approvals for
zoo animals, following an application from the Zoo and
Aquarium Association, was completed in July 2013.
This resulted in a single set of containment controls
imposed on all New Zealand zoo facilities.
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Exclusive Economic Zone
We took up our major new responsibility as the decisionmaking authority for marine consenting in the EEZ. We
received three applications for notified marine consents
and three for non-notified consents, and we received
impact assessments during the transitional regime
which ended on 28 June 2014.

Nationally significant proposals
We worked on seven resource management applications
during the year: a call-in and six nationally significant
proposals. The call-in (a plan change application) and
three of the applications for nationally significant
proposals were decided by year-end, and the others
were decided soon after.

Emissions Trading Scheme
We operate the New Zealand Emission Unit Register,
which records and processes carbon unit transactions.
In December 2013, the EPA Board approved replacement
of the Register. The new system is scheduled to go live
in 2015.

2013-14: The year in review

Our outcomes framework from the
Statement of Intent 2013-17

IMPACTS

LONG-TERM
OUTCOMES

14

New Zealand’s environmental management systems
are strengthened and supported so that they can
achieve the greatest overall environmental, economic,
social and cultural benefits.

New Zealand becomes a successful low-carbon society
that is resilient to climate change impacts on its
climate, economy and lifestyle.

Reduce harm from
chemical and
biological hazards
and from hazardous
waste through more
effective management
frameworks.

Achieve better solutions
to environmental
problems by supporting
community and Māori
involvement and action,
and international
cooperation.

Improve the
implementation of the
resource management
framework to manage
environmental effects
and allocate resources
within environmental
limits.

Make timely, balanced decisions.

Raise public awareness of what is
required to comply with relevant
controls (international and domestic).

Ensure decision making is robust,
transparent and cost effective.
Facilitate effective participation of
Māori and other stakeholders in
decision making.

Method

Ensure that chemical and biological
approvals prevent or manage
adverse effects.
Assist enforcement agencies,
manufacturers, importers and end
users to understand HSNO controls.

Decision making
OUTPUTS

Monitor external enforcement
agencies’ management of the risk
of harms.

»	New organisms
decision making.
»	Hazardous waste, ozonedepleting substances and
hazardous substances-related
decision making.
»	Resource management
decision making.

Oversight of compliance
and enforcement
»	HSNO, ozone-depleting
substances, and hazardous
waste compliance
and enforcement.
»	Promoting awareness
and compliance.
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Decrease New
Zealand’s net emissions
of greenhouse gases
below business-asusual levels in a costeffective way.

Maximise the value of the ETS as
a key intervention to decrease
New Zealand’s net emissions of
greenhouse gases by:
building relationships, educating
and assisting participants,
account holders and eligible
entities to enable them to receive
entitlements and meet obligations
managing the New Zealand
Emission Unit Register and the
Scheme to provide confidence in
their security and integrity, and
user satisfaction with the quality of
the service experience
using operational insights to
actively influence both the
achievement of current policy
intent and the continuous
improvement of the
regulatory framework
participate in building internal
capability to meet increasingly
complex external threats
and opportunities.

Supporting
environmental
management

Emissions Trading
Scheme

»	Government policy,
legislation and
international activities.

»	Operation of the
New Zealand Emission
Unit Register.

»	Resource management
advice and support services.

»	Administration of the ETS.
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What success looks like
Much of our work involves long term outcomes, to
ensure that people and the environment are protected.
Successful environmental protection is however much
wider than that. It also means that we enable industries
and businesses to find it easy to understand their
environmental responsibilities and to comply with the law.
This approach can also bring many economic benefits.
Success is therefore when:
we have evidence of ‘better future environments for
New Zealanders’ that we can attribute to our work
we have credible success stories based on
scientific evidence
our stakeholders know who we are, take part in
the process and respect what we do
we are a trusted member of the community
and within the wider government sector.
This Annual Report shows how we apply an approach
that is based on evidence and science, while working
with many other people and organisations both in
New Zealand and internationally, to reach good decisions
for New Zealanders.

Progress towards our
intended results

Impact measure 1: Downward trend in the
number of serious harm injuries, fatalities and
catastrophic events resulting from the use of
hazardous substances and new organisms.
Target: Downward trend
Result: Hazardous substances: Not achieved.
	New organisms: Achieved
There were 1,100 incidents involving hazardous substances
reported to the EPA during 2013-14, of which more than
95 percent were categorised as Level 11 (minimal). There
were no incidents at Levels 4 (major) or 5 (massive). The
17 incidents categorised as Level 3 (moderate) were all
reviewed by the relevant enforcement agency and a report
sent to the EPA. The number of serious harm injuries,
fatalities and catastrophic events has not reduced since
2009-10. The greatest number of serious incidents occurred
in private dwellings or in motor vehicles, and involved LPG
gas cylinders, petrol or waste oil. The overwhelming number
of incidents were as a result of human error and poor
substance handling.
There were 31 incidents involving new organisms, including
six involving genetically modified organisms recorded in
2013-14, compared with 34 for the previous financial year.
Most incidents were categorised as Level 2 with two at
Level 1. There were no incidents at higher levels.
Appendix 2 contains further information on incidents.

The most direct measure of the EPA’s performance is how
successfully we are delivering our services (our outputs).
Each output has one or more performance measures that
are monitored throughout the year.

Current impact measures that
show our progress over time
The Statement of Intent 2013-17 included the following
longer-term impacts that we measure to demonstrate
what progress we are making. Although the effects of
much of our work may not be evident for years, over
time we should be able to demonstrate with increasing
reliability the impact that our work has had on people
and on the environment.

A full definition of the categories of hazardous substance incidents can be
found in Appendix 2.

1
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Impact measure 2: No EPA-approved
organisms become a pest, weed or disease
Target: Nil
Result: Achieved
A review is conducted annually to check that no EPAapproved organism becomes a pest, weed or disease.
The latest review, in 2014, has verified that this is the case.
This is the same result as in previous years.

Impact measure 3: Support decision makers
(Boards of Inquiry, EPA Committees, EPA Board)
in their decision making
Target: Decision makers supported as required
Result: Achieved
We supported Boards of Inquiry for decisions on the
Christchurch Southern Motorway, the Peka Peka to North
Ōtaki Expressway and the Tukituki Catchment Proposal.
Three other Boards of Inquiry were under way at the
year-end: the New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA)
Basin Bridge Proposal, NZTA Pūhoi to Warkworth Road
and the Ruakura Development Plan Change. Feedback
at the time of the Board of Inquiry hearings, and surveys
of participants after the hearings, have generally
been positive. Valuable comments around service
improvements have been incorporated into the ‘lessons
learnt’, which is a formal part of our process for every
Board of Inquiry.
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Impact measure 4: Streamline and
improve resource management
decision-making systems
Target: Feedback from decision makers,
applicants and submitters demonstrates
satisfaction with the decision-making process
Result: Partially achieved
Valuable comments from surveys of stakeholders,
decision-making committees and Boards of Inquiry around
service improvements have been incorporated into the
‘lessons learnt’ register. This document, which is then
translated into operational improvements, is a formal part
of our administration process for every Board of Inquiry.
Specific targets and achievements are detailed on page 28
(Output 2) and page 32, (Output 4).
During the year we have made strenuous efforts to reduce
the daily cost of processing Nationally Significant Proposals
wherever possible and we are collating cost information
on each Proposal as it is undertaken. Initiatives include
making the pre-lodgement process more efficient,
the use of expert conferencing and facilitated meetings.
Many other initiatives will need legislative change in order
to put the savings into effect.
We are streamlining our administrative process around
the electronic receipt of applications, management of
submissions, and electronic payments. This project is now
well underway and significant gains in terms of both cost
and risk reduction is anticipated to be realised through this
project in the medium term.
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Impact measure 5: Involvement with Māori and
other communities is such that useful feedback
is obtained to provide better solutions
Target: Evidence of improved solutions and
strengthening of cooperation through surveys
and feedback
Result: Achieved
The EPA developed He Whetū Mārama, a framework to
guide the EPA in the undertaking of its statutory and
other obligations to Māori, with a vision of reinforcing the
unique relationship of Māori to the environment to inform
the EPA’s decision making.
In line with He Whetū Mārama, the EPA continued its ongoing
programme of engaging Māori throughout 2013-14. This
included hosting or attending hui that increased awareness
about our role in the environmental regulatory system.
We also continued to provide applicants with advice
and contact information relating to Māori consultation
and notification requirements. Surveys of Māori have
demonstrated their views of our activities and the information
provided (see page 32 for survey targets and results).
During the year, a Decision-making Committee and a
Board of Inquiry held more hearing days on marae than
previously (4 days in 2013-14, 3 days in 2012-13). EPA staff
and Ngā Kaihautū members assisted with tikanga and
protocol requirements.
In addition EPA staff have held meetings with iwi and
members of our Te Herenga network of iwi resource
managers, on a range of topics aimed at improving the
ability of Māori to participate and to contribute effectively
to EPA decision making. These have included:
a Māori Environmental Management Hui focussing on
post-settlement environmental management
a series of hui in the Northland region raising awareness
about the EEZ Act regime and the EPA generally
a hui of Te Herenga members on the role of the EPA in
New Zealand’s EEZ

To help industry understand and achieve effective
engagement with Māori, we have met with agrichemical
suppliers to raise awareness about Māori engagement. We
coordinated meetings between HSNO applicants and iwi
groups, in order to help them address Māori perspectives
in their applications. We also coordinated a Māori reference
group to consider the application by Tomatoes NZ to
import a new biocontrol agent for use in glasshouses.
The EPA continues to be actively involved in liaising
with industry, such as oil and gas groups and the
agrichemical industry, with affected communities and
with environmental groups, as well as with those applying
for consents and those wishing to make submissions
on applications or proposals. We have found that
communicating well with the regulated community,
especially at an early stage in the process, works to
improve understanding, trust in us as a regulator, and an
efficient process.
Strengthening our relationship with industry ensures that
industry can comply with the rules, for example supplying
information in a useful way through the Toolbox campaign
for businesses that use hazardous substances, or helping
those applying for permits to understand the often complex
legislation and permitting requirements. The feedback we
receive from these links is a valuable input to improve our
systems and our approach as a regulator.

Impact measure 6: The EPA is easy to contact
for information and to provide feedback
Target: Survey results improve
Result: Baseline information for 2013-14
From the EPA’s service satisfaction survey in 2013-14,
73 percent of respondents agreed or strongly agreed
that it was easy or very easy to contact the EPA to ask
a question or make their views known. This is a new
measure for 2013-14.

an EPA Kāhui Kaumātua hui to discuss the role of
tikanga in environmental management
meetings with iwi authorities involved in specific
applications to the EPA.
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Impact measure 7: Cooperation is strengthened
through working with international agencies
and through consideration of international best
practice in decision making
Target: Demonstrable linkage between work
with international agencies and improved
decision making
Result: Achieved
Our international work includes work on international
conventions that New Zealand has accepted into national
legislation, and review work under the Kyoto protocol.
Internationally, we have continued to work with other
countries and agencies across a variety of international
protocols and agreements. While often technical in nature,
the work of our international scientists on, for example,
hazardous substances or waste ensures that we remain
up to date with international thinking and regulation,
and includes this knowledge in our consideration of
applications and controls. At the same time we can
contribute our own knowledge and experience to the
development of new international regulation and controls.
Examples during the year have included the work on
brominated flame retardants, mercury, and registries for
substances with global warming potential.
This work ensures that the EPA makes its contribution as
a good international citizen, and keeps its information
networks relevant and up to date. This in turn aids our
decision making so that our decisions are made with the
best available data and are aligned with international
best practice.
During the year, the first benchmarking report was
produced, which demonstrated that the EPA was
amongst the middle rank of the ‘small cohort’ agencies in
New Zealand for its efficient use of administrative support
services. It was also tackling issues that were common
across many international environmental agencies,
including financial constraints, complex environmental
issues and the need to work across a range of different
agencies and national boundaries.

Impact measure 8: Having a price for carbon
emissions influences business and individuals to
change behaviour to reduce emissions
Target: Net emissions of greenhouse gases trend
towards longer term reduction
Result: Not achieved
New Zealand submitted its Sixth National Communication
on Climate Change2 to the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change in early 2014. This report
identified that under current policy settings net emissions
until 2030 were expected to increase. The Executive
Summary (pp 12- 17) outlines New Zealand’s specific
circumstances, showing among other things that the
ETS is forecast to have a positive impact overall on net
emissions in this period.
As we reported in the EPA Annual Report for 2012-13,
the market mechanism is a tool to encourage carbonemitting industries to change behaviours to manage
emissions. During the last year the international and
domestic carbon price has remained low. The EPA does
not survey participants to understand their reasons
for making business decisions to do with emissions
reduction. We note that in the 2013-14 year the net level
of deregistrations from the ETS of post-1989 forestry
participants was approximately 500. However, New
Zealand takes a leading role in the Global Research
Alliance on agricultural emissions and as a nation
can point to the reducing emissions intensity of our
agricultural activities per unit of production even though,
at this stage, the agriculture sector is reporting emissions
but has no liability. The reduction in emissions intensity
in this sector has been more than one percent a year on
average since 1990. This cannot be solely attributed to
having a price on carbon emissions, but it is a result of a
systematic application of improved approaches to animal
genetics and management, better grassland management
and feeding practices.

The report can be found at http://www.mfe.govt.nz/publications/climate/nzsixth-national-communication/sixth-national-communication.pdf

2
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Impact measure 9: Participants’ emissions
decrease relative to production
Target: Instances of behaviour change in
relation to the carbon price identified

Impact measure 10: Discretionary participation in
the scheme and trading within a well-functioning
market is supported by:
Trust in the integrity and security
of the system.

Result: Partially achieved

A positive service experience.

The number of applications for Unique Emissions Factors
(UEFs) is another example of industry responding to a
carbon price signal. UEFs reduce a participant’s carbon
liability by recognising technologies and practices which
reduce their emissions intensity below industry averages.
The EPA received 21 applications from 12 participants
(2012-13 four applications) for consideration of UEFs for
the 2013-14 year. Of the four UEF applicants from 2012-13,
two updated their applications and two continued with
the same factors. This means there are now a total of 14
participants with UEFs for the 2013-14 year. As predicted in
the EPA Annual Report for 2012-13, waste sector participants
took advantage of the opportunity to reduce their emissions
obligation (by up to 90 percent in some cases) through the
use of better technologies and practices.

Relevant and timely information
provided to the market.
Target: 100% of emission unit compliance
obligations met, customer trust in the integrity
and security of the NZEUR and ETS systems
and processes is greater than 75% and customer
satisfaction with the overall quality of service
delivery is greater than 75%
Result: Not achieved
This year we set ourselves a new trust measure in our
Statement of Intent. Sixty-six percent of respondents
agreed or strongly agreed that they were confident in the
integrity and security of the ETS and NZEUR systems and
processes. In the same survey 69 percent of respondents
were satisfied or very satisfied with the overall quality of
service delivery. While this measure did not achieve its first
year target of 75%, it demonstrated trust and confidence in
the ETS systems. In addition to the statutory reporting for
the ETS, we have developed ways of increasing access to
information in the NZEUR. The first was differentiating the
types of New Zealand Units by showing the reason it was
transferred from the Crown, for example from a forester
entering into a 50-year covenant not to harvest. The
second was introducing regular updates of aggregated
transaction activity for use by the market, media and
researchers, and publishing them on the EPA website. Both
initiatives have been well received by the target audiences.
We will continue to develop this information provision
during 2014-15.

2013-14: The year in review
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What we did – by the numbers

20

new organism applications
were processed by the EPA.

108

import or export permits for
ozone-depleting substances
and

66

More than

350

import or export permits for
chemicals and wastes issued.

submissions

for the Trans-Tasman
Resources proposal, with

59

applicant and submitter
experts presenting evidence.

new organism enquiries
answered from researchers,
industry, media, other
Government departments and
the general public.

2

new applications for proposals
of national significance were
lodged with the EPA.
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2,490
participants

in the ETS, including both
non-forestry and forestry
participants.

406

The EPA received

100
requests

for information that were
processed under the Official
Information Act.

submissions
were received for the Tukituki
Catchment Proposal.

18.84m
units surrendered by nonforestry participants for the
2013 reporting period

More than

12,000
Hazardous Substances
Toolboxes distributed.

98%

of participants are accurately
recorded in the NZEUR within
two business days on receipt
of a properly completed
application.

6,915

Hazardous Substances emails
and 0800 enquiries.
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Statement of responsibility
Financial commentary
The year-end result was a deficit of $1,226,000 compared
with a budgeted deficit of $2,016,000. The lower deficit
was mainly due to higher revenue of $2,425,000.
Expenditure was also higher than budget ($1,635,000).
Variances in revenue and expenditure are due to increased
activity in Nationally Significant Proposals.

In this year, the Board signed the contract for the
New Zealand Emission Unit Register (NZEUR) project.
We completed the initiation phase and commenced
the implementation phase by 30 June 2014, with the
expectation of going live in 2015. Overall, the capital
expenditure for the year was $1.688 million with a further
$4.315 million capital expenditure committed but not yet
incurred. The capital expenditure budget for the year was
$8.22 million, including transfers from previous years.

Statement of responsibility
The Board of the Environmental Protection Authority is responsible for the preparation of the EPA’s Financial Statements
and Statement of Service Performance, and for the judgements made in them.
The Board has the responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial reporting.
In the Board’s opinion, these Financial Statements and Statement of Service Performance fairly reflect the financial
position and operations of the EPA for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Kerry Prendergast
Chair		
Environmental Protection Authority

Kevin Thompson
Deputy Chair
Environmental Protection Authority

31 October 2014

31 October 2014
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Part B

Service
performance
This section describes the
outputs that the EPA is funded
to deliver and assesses delivery
against the relevant output
performance measures

24

Statement of service performance
for 2013-14
This section summarises the EPA’s performance against the
output performance measures set out in the Statement
of Intent 2013-17, as reflected in the Output Agreement
for 2013-14 with the Ministers for the Environment and
for Climate Change. For each output expense, we have
assessed whether we have met the targets associated with
the measures, and have provided an explanation where
there is a significant difference between the target and
what we achieved.

During the year we revised our strategy for the
organisation. In order to ensure alignment and a clear ‘line
of sight’ between what we do and how we are funded,
the output classes and outputs were similarly revised.
For 2014-15 there will only be six outputs as we clarify
and simplify our accountability framework. Performance
indicators have also been streamlined to focus on our key
accountability requirements.

Costs and revenue for outputs for the year ended 30 June 2014
Actual
2014
$000
Cost

Actual
2014
$000
Revenue

Budget
2014
$000
Cost

Budget
2014
$000
Revenue

Actual
2013
$000
cost

Actual
2013
$000
REVENUE

Output 1 – Hazardous substance, new
organism, ozone-depleting substance
and hazardous waste decision making

4,639

6,053

6,256

6,256

6,100

6,992

Output 2 – Resource management
decision making

8,904

10,910

7,625

7,625

5,706

6,189

Output 3 – Hazardous substance, new
organism, ozone-depleting substance
and hazardous waste compliance

3,916

3,694

3,611

3,611

3,168

2,115

Output 4 – Promoting awareness and
compliance

1,289

891

883

883

869

504

Output 5 – Government policy,
legislation and international activities

3,328

1,845

2,715

1,824

2,188

1,813

Output 6 – Resource management
advice and support

1,401

604

592

592

1,329

1,257

Output 7 – Exclusive Economic
Zone applications, assessments and
compliance

6,054

4,209

6,056

5,025

994

1,339

Output 8 – Climate change response
administration

6,354

6,453

6,512

6,418

6,577

8,028

35,885

34,659

34,250

32,234

26,931

28,237

-

(1,226)

-

(2,016)

1,306

-

Total expenditure
Surplus/ (deficit)

Output performance: Vote Environment
Work under Vote Environment relates to the Government’s
aim to achieve better solutions to environmental problems
and improve the resource management framework.
Now that we have three years’ data available over most
output performance indicators, trend information is
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included for the first time, indicating the direction
of performance over three years. Trends may not be
discernible over such a short time frame, but the data
will build a clearer picture over time.
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Output 1: Hazardous substance, new organism, ozonedepleting substance and hazardous waste
decision making
Our activities under this output relate to assessing and deciding applications and statutory determinations for hazardous
substances and new organisms in accordance with the Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996, issuing
permits under the Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Act 1988 and the Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Prohibition
Order (No 2) 2004; and issuing import or export permits for ozone-depleting substances in accordance with the Ozone
Layer Protection Act 1996.

What we delivered
We made decisions on 20 applications and statutory determinations for new organisms in accordance with the
Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996 (the HSNO Act), compared to 35 applications in 2012-13.
We approved the release of four new organisms (not genetically modified).
We reviewed and updated the containment controls for eight genetically-modified organisms.
We provided 34 instances of non-statutory advice on the status of organisms in New Zealand, and answered more than
350 new organism enquiries from researchers, industry, media, other government departments and the general public.
We guided stakeholders through the application process, and in doing so raised awareness and improved applicants’
understanding of how to make an application.
We decided 115 applications relating to hazardous substances in accordance with Part 5 of the HSNO Act, compared to
162 applications in 2012-13.
We assessed and decided 1,316 applications for licences, permissions, test certification, equipment, codes of practice,
import certificates and waivers in accordance with Part 6 of the HSNO Act.
We issued 108 import or export permits for ozone-depleting substances in accordance with the Ozone Layer Protection
Act 1996, compared to 187 permits in 2012-13.
We issued 66 import or export permits for chemicals and wastes covered by the Stockholm, Rotterdam, Basel and
Waigani Conventions in accordance with the Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Act 1988 and the Import and Exports
(Restrictions) Prohibition Order (No 2) 2004, compared to 79 permits in 2012-13.

Service performance

Profile:

Dr Valerie Herno
Senior Hazardous Substances Advisor
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Faced with a choice of working in Paris for an
internationally-known company, or travelling
half-way around the world to work for a small
government regulator, what would you do?
Luckily for the EPA, Dr Valerie Herno turned down the Paris offer
and chose to leave her native France to join the EPA in March 2013
as a Senior Hazardous Substances Advisor. After spending her
career to that point working for industrial companies,
Valerie wanted a change. This is her first government job.
Valerie gained her PhD in toxicology from the Lille University of
Science and Technology, where Louis Pasteur was the first Dean
of the Science Faculty. She worked for industrial companies for
about 17 years in regulatory affairs concerning toxicology and
ecotoxicology, preparing regulatory dossiers for pesticides.
She has also worked for the chemical industry (cosmetics, food
additives, polymers) in a managerial role as part of a team creating
safety data sheets, and managing regulatory affairs.
Valerie’s work at the EPA involves making a scientific risk
assessment of the dossiers of information provided by
applicants who want to import or manufacture hazardous
substances – usually agricultural chemicals containing a new
active ingredient, or a new formulation. She has also worked
on applications for import or manufacture of timber treatment
chemicals and anti-fouling paints, and reassessments and
modified reassessments of pesticides.
Her work involves assessing the risks to the aquatic environment,
to soil, plants, invertebrates, and birds. This, together with the
applicant’s own information, and information gathered from
many other sources including Māori consultation, submissions
from the public, other government agencies, locally and
internationally, goes forward to the decision-making committee.
Valerie has taken an active role in matters concerning bee health,
and has spoken to the annual National Beekeepers’ Association
conference about the EPA’s work in protecting bees and other
beneficial insects, which includes prohibiting the use of certain
substances where bees are foraging and on plants or trees in flower.
The EPA is often asked why it doesn’t simply adopt rulings on
chemicals made in other countries. Valerie explains that the
EPA monitors and keeps abreast of issues and practices in other
countries, particularly the USA and Europe, and does adapt and
use that knowledge. However the EPA does not always exactly
copy what’s done overseas because “the conditions here in
New Zealand can be different to the US or Europe”.
“We have made changes recently – being more strict with our
applications, requesting more information, formalising our
practices, and being more consistent.” Valerie says this is one of
New Zealand’s advantages: “Because it’s a small country with an
innovative culture, it is open to improving things.”
EPA ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014
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World leaders in the risk assessment of endophytes
Endophytes are fungi that live in close association with cool-season grasses that are
important to New Zealand’s pasture-based primary industries. They help grass species
to combat pests and diseases, reducing pesticide use, and improving farm productivity.
The EPA’s New Organisms team developed a world-first risk assessment model for endophytes.
The risk assessment model we
developed enables the risks and
costs of releasing the endophyte
strains into the environment to be
weighed against the benefits, taking
into consideration the magnitude
of the effects and likelihood of
their being realised. This

model has been used by the EPA in
the consideration of two applications
for the release of endophytes.
The New Organisms team has
presented this risk assessment
model internationally – at the
Australia-New Zealand Society for
Risk Analysis (SRA-ANZ) conference

in Canberra, Australia, September
2013; at the International Conference
on Coexistence between Genetically
Modified (GM) and non-GM based
Agricultural Supply Chains (GMCC) in
Lisbon, November 2013; and at the
Society for Risk Analysis (SRA) annual
meeting in Baltimore, December 2013.

Output 1: Hazardous substance, new organism, ozone-depleting
substance and hazardous waste decision making
Performance measures

No EPA-approved organism becomes
a pest, weed or disease.
There is a reduction in number of
serious-harm injuries, fatalities and
catastrophic events resulting from
the use of hazardous substances
and new organisms.

All decisions are made within the
statutory time frames.

Standard 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Standard met?

Actual 2012-13

Nil

Nil

Yes

Nil

New organisms: New organisms:
Less than 34
29 at Level 2
at Level 2

Yes

New organisms:
34 at Level 2

Hazardous
Substances:
Less than 12
at Level 3

Hazardous
Substances:
17 at Level 3

No

Hazardous Substances:
12 at Level 3

100%

100%

Yes

Hazardous Substances:
97%
New Organisms: 100%

Applicants find the advice provided on
the approval process to be clear, helpful
and fit for purpose.
All decisions made are consistent with
the HSNO Act and relevant regulations.

No percentage
standard

59%

Yes

52%

Yes

All consistent

Yes

No1

Note 1: The EPA decision on Zinc Finger Nuclease type 1 (ZFN-1), that was quashed by the High Court in 2013-14, was made in April 2013 (the previous financial year).

Service performance
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Output 2: Resource management decision making, advice
and support services
Our activities under this output relate to the management of applications that are considered to be of
national significance.
Applications may be submitted directly to the EPA under section 145 of the Resource Management Act 1991 (RMA)
or may be called in by the Minister for the Environment under section 142 of the RMA.

What we delivered
We managed RMA applications considered to be of national significance. These applications were submitted directly to
the EPA under section 145 of the RMA.
During the year, we worked on six applications made directly to the EPA for resource consents or changes to resource
consents, and one call-in made by the Minister for the Environment.
Decision making in relation to this output covers pre-application discussions with applicants, assessing applications,
providing advice to the Minister, managing public participation through submissions and hearings, supporting
Boards of Inquiry in considering applications, and releasing decisions.

How well we delivered it
Output 2: Resource management decision making, advice and support services
Performance measures

Standard 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Standard met?

Actual 2012-13

All applications to the EPA are assessed for national
significance and a recommendation made to the
Minister within 20 working days.

100%

100%

Yes

100%

All applications to the EPA that are referred to a Board
of Inquiry are processed within the statutory time frame
of nine months, unless the time is extended by the
responsible Minister.

100%

100%

Yes

100%
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Further performance information
Resource management applications and decisions
Application type

Forecast 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Decision 2013-14

In progress 30 June 2014

Call-ins and
other ministerial
interventions

1

1

1 approved

Nil

Applications of
national significance
lodged with the EPA

4

Tukituki Catchment Proposal
part 1 – Hawkes Bay Regional
Council Plan Change.
1

3 approved (2012-13
applications)
Christchurch Southern
Motorway;
Peka Peka to North Ōtaki
Expressway;
Tukituki Catchment Proposal
part 2 – Hawkes Bay Regional
Investment Company
Ruataniwha Irrigation Scheme).

Total

5

2

4

3 in progress:
(2012-13 applications) NZTA
Basin Bridge Proposal and
Ruakura Development
Plan Change.
(2013-14 application) NZTA
Pūhoi to Warkworth Road.

3

Note: Decisions on applications are made by the Boards of Inquiry, not the EPA. Call-ins refer to when a Minister calls in a proposal that has been lodged with a local
authority, either referring it to an independent Board of Inquiry or to the Environment Court for consideration and decision.

Service performance
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Output 3: Hazardous substance, new organism, ozonedepleting substance and hazardous waste compliance
Our activities under this output relate to coordinating and facilitating compliance under the Hazardous Substances and
New Organisms Act 1996, the Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996, the Import and Export (Restrictions) Act 1988, and the
Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Prohibition Order (No 2) 2004 jointly with other agencies.

What we delivered
We coordinated and assisted compliance with hazardous substance approvals under the relevant Acts.
We monitored and assisted with compliance with new organism approvals, and developed and maintained policies
and procedures relating to new organism compliance.

How well we delivered it
Output 3: Hazardous substance, new organism, ozone-depleting substances and
hazardous waste compliance
Performance measures

Standard 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Standard met?

Actual 2012-13

100%

100%

Yes

100%

A test certifier audit programme is developed and
signed off by the Board by 30 September 2013 and
implemented by 30 June 2014.

Programme
developed and
implemented

Achieved

Yes

Achieved

The public awareness campaign will result in 5,000
small and medium-sized enterprises receiving
‘Hazardous Substances Toolboxes’ (Toolbox) and will
generate a 15% increase in email and 0800 enquiries.

5,000 Toolboxes

More than
12,000
Toolboxes

Yes

N/A – New
Performance
Measure

All central government enforcement agencies regard
the EPA’s annual HSNO Act compliance activities and
intentions report to be fair and accurate and consider
they had an acceptable opportunity to provide input
into the process and report.

15% increase

41.5%
increase

At least 70% of enquirers surveyed find the EPA
compliance information clear and helpful.

70%

72%

Yes

N/A – New
Performance
Measure

No incidents causing adverse effects from new
organisms are caused by inadequate setting
of controls.

Nil

Nil

Yes

Achieved
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Profile:

Dr Clark Ehlers
Senior New Organisms Advisor

The potential for innovative, beneficial uses
of microorganisms motivates microbiologist
Dr Clark Ehlers, who leads the EPA’s work in
integrated pest management and processing
applications from people wanting to import
into New Zealand microbes that have a “new
organism” status.
Clark, a Senior Advisor in our New Organisms team, was
born in South Africa. He is a research scientist by training,
specialising in the ecology and application of microbes in
natural and industrial settings.
He gained his PhD in Microbial Biotechnology in South Africa,
and spent two and a half years in Vienna, working on microbes
in the environment and applied use of microbes. He also has
a law degree, undertaken to further a strong interest in the
regulatory frameworks, resource management, intellectual
property and R&D issues surrounding his specialty field.
After Vienna, Clark spent five years as a post-doctoral
research scientist at Auckland University, which expanded
his knowledge of microbial ecology and microbial genomics.
While there, he became Research Development Manager at
the University’s Centre for Microbial Innovation – a role which
linked industry groups, research providers on projects and
proposals for clients.
Clark joined the EPA in June 2014. It was the combination of
science and law that interested him in working for the EPA
which, he says, has a primary role in the legal framework that
underpins innovation in New Zealand.
His role mainly involves receiving applications concerning
plants, insects or microorganisms that are new to
New Zealand. He works with the applicant through the
pre-application stage to formal acceptance, then writes staff
assessment reports. If the application is publicly notified,
then Clark’s work must take account of submissions and
Māori consultation. Other government agencies may provide
relevant information, and Clark and the team will also review
scientific literature and other publications, peer-reviewed
or otherwise, and conduct a risk/benefit analysis. All of this,
together with the applicant’s information and submissions,
goes forward to the decision-making committee for
consideration and decision.
Clark also works on applications for importing and releasing
new species of grasses for pasture, coupled with their natural
fungal ‘protection agents’ that live in close association
with the plant. This, and other proposals such as using soil
microorganisms to help plants grow better by fixing nitrogen,
is all part of the potential for using microorganisms to increase
the productivity and efficiency of primary industry land use.
Service performance
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Output 4: Promoting awareness and participation
Our activities under this output aim to increase understanding and knowledge of the work the EPA does and to support
participation in public processes.

What we delivered
During 2013-14 we conducted surveys of people who had interacted with the EPA during the year, participated in our
processes, or sought and received information from us.

How well we delivered it
Output 4: Promoting awareness and participation
Performance measures

Standard 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Standard met?

Actual 2012-13

At least 70% of people surveyed find the EPA’s
information easy to access.

70%

60%

No

51%

At least 70% of people surveyed find the EPA’s
information easy to understand.

70%

61%

No

N/A – New
Performance
Measure

At least 70% of people surveyed say that it is
reasonably or very easy to contact the EPA to ask a
question or make their views known.

70%

73%

Yes

N/A – New
Performance
Measure

At least 70% of Māori surveyed rate our activities as
good or very good.

70%

85%

Yes

91%

At least 70% of Māori surveyed rate the information
provided by the EPA as relevant or very relevant.

70%

100%

Yes

96%

Increase

4

Yes

3

At least 70% of submitters on HSNO applications feel
that their views have been considered somewhat,
quite a lot or fully.

70%

92%

Yes

86%

At least 70% of submitters on RMA applications feel
they have been able to participate to the extent they
wanted.

70%

62%

No

65%

Increase in the number of hearing days held on marae

Note: Māori surveyed were members of Te Herenga.
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Engaging with Māori over the EEZ
The EPA continues to engage with
Māori across the range of its functions
to ensure that our decisions and
processes are fully informed by the
unique and extensive knowledge
Māori have of New Zealand’s
environment. Due to our relatively
new EEZ Act functions and the
high public interest in the EEZ, the
focus of our engagement with
Māori over the last year has been on
raising awareness about the range
of marine management regimes,
and in particular the EPA’s role. This
has seen us travel from Dunedin in
the south, to Te Rerenga Wairua
(Cape Reinga) in the north,
sharing information,

receiving feedback, hearing the
full range of passionate views, and
answering questions to help improve
understanding.
The culmination of these
engagements was the EPA’s
organising a hui for members of its
Te Herenga network of iwi resource
and environmental managers on
“understanding the EPA’s role in the
EEZ”. We kept participant numbers
down to ensure that members could
gain a greater depth of understanding
about how they could contribute to
EEZ decision making, and for the EPA
to better understand the needs and
interests of iwi. Participant feedback

was extremely positive with one
Te Herenga member noting in an
article in our Te Pūtara newsletter:
“The hui was one of the most
informative and important hui
I have attended … I had not
realised the EEZ Act’s specific
nature and how it differs from
the RMA.”
We aim to hold further similarlyfocused hui over the coming year and
expect them to benefit the outcome
of our decision making, for Māori
and industry. We are committed to
operating an effective regime and
recognise we all have an important
part to play.
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Output 5: Government policy, legislation and
international activities
Our activities under this output are advising on the implementation of government policy and legislation relevant to
the Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996, the Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996, the Imports and Exports
(Restrictions) Act 1988, the Climate Change Response Act 2002, the Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Prohibition Order (No
2) 2004, the Resource Management Act 1991, and monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the HSNO Act regime.
The volume of activity in this output is demand driven.

What we delivered
We advised on the implementation of government policy and legislation relevant to the Acts.
We monitored and reviewed the effectiveness of the HSNO Act regime, working to ensure inconsistencies or conflicts
between this and other legislation are minimised.
We participated in international developments in the management of hazardous substances, hazardous waste
and new organisms.

How well we delivered it
Output 5: Government policy, legislation and international activities
Performance measures

Standard 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Standard met?

Actual 2012-13

100%

100%

Yes

100%

Satisfied

Satisfied

Yes

Satisfied

Implementation of the international work programme,
which has been agreed to by the EPA Board by 1 July
2013.

Achieved

Achieved

Yes

N/A – New
Performance
Measure

The annual report to the International Ozone
Secretariat, required by Article 7 of the Montreal
Protocol, is provided by 30 June 2014.

Achieved

Achieved

Yes

Not achieved

All responses to ministerial correspondence and
parliamentary questions are completed to the
satisfaction of the Ministry for the Environment within
five working days (or as otherwise agreed).
The Ministry for the Environment is satisfied with the
timeliness and quality of EPA advice and input into
government policy activities, as measured by formal
and informal feedback.
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Output 6: Resource management advice and support services
Our activities under this output relate to the provision of information, advice and support services in connection with the
Resource Management Act 1991, and developing operational frameworks for effective decision making under that Act.

What we delivered
We provided information, advice and support services for Nationally Significant Proposals, Boards of Inquiry, and
Ministerial requirements.

How well we delivered it
Output 6: Resource management advice and support services
Performance measures

Standard 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Standard met?

Actual 2012-13

Feedback from the Chairs of Boards or other nationallevel decision-making processes, in which the EPA has
been involved, indicates that they are satisfied with the
support provided.

Satisfied

Satisfied

Yes

N/A – New
Performance
Measure

Feedback from participants in the hearing process
indicates that they are satisfied with the support
provided during the hearing.

Satisfied

Satisfied

Yes

N/A – New
Performance
Measure

90%

100%

Yes

67%

All requests from the Minister for information and
advice are responded to within the agreed timeframes,
to the satisfaction of the Minister.

All

Achieved

Yes

Not achieved

No complaints to the Ombudsmen upheld by the
Ombudsmen.

Nil

Achieved

Yes

N/A – New
Performance
Measure

A survey of applicants finds that at least 90% are
satisfied with the advice and support provided.
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About Nationally Significant Proposals
The EPA has responsibilities as part of the decision-making process for proposals of
national significance under the Resource Management Act 1991 (RMA).
Matters lodged with us may include:

a board of inquiry

an application for a resource consent

the Environment Court

an application for a change to or cancellation of
resource consent conditions

the local council.

a notice of requirement for a designation or to
alter a designation
a notice of requirement for a heritage order
a request for a private plan change to a regional
or district council plan
a request for the preparation of a regional plan
(other than a regional coastal plan).
To be a nationally significant proposal, the matter must be
considered by the Minister to have national importance
or effect in some way. There is no definition of “nationally
significant”. Instead the Minister considers a number of
factors when deciding if a proposal is nationally significant.
For example, a proposal may be deemed to be of national
significance if (among other things) it:
has produced widespread public interest
involves or is likely to involve significant use
of natural or physical resources
affects or is likely to affect a place of
national significance
affects or is likely to affect or is relevant to
New Zealand’s international obligations to the
global environment.
The Minister for the Environment considers a land-based
proposal. The Minister of Conservation considers a coastal
proposal. The Ministers make a joint decision where a
proposal relates to both land and coastal areas.
We make a recommendation to the Minister on where to
direct the matter. The Minister then decides if the matter
is (or is part of ) a proposal of national significance and can
refer it to one of the following to make a decision:
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Subject to some limited exceptions in section 149C of the
RMA, the EPA will publicly notify the Minister’s direction
and the proposal. If the matter is directed to a board
of inquiry we provide support to the board during the
decision-making process.
Where a public notice of direction has been given,
anyone can make a submission to us on the proposal.
A submission can:
be in support
be in opposition
support some parts and oppose other parts, or
neither support nor oppose, but just make a neutral
submission with information to be considered.
Generally speaking the board of inquiry can set its own
procedures (commonly referred to as inquiry procedures)
and may direct the times for evidence exchange and
conferencing and facilitation. There are often one or more
pre-hearing conferences where the applicant and submitters
are invited to attend to discuss procedural matters.
Hearing of an application
A board of inquiry is required to hold a hearing to consider
a matter unless neither the applicant nor any submitter
wants to be heard. These hearings must be held in public
at a place near the affected area.
Only the applicant or those people who made a
submission (or their representatives or witnesses) have
a right to be heard at the hearing. The board of inquiry
may permit cross-examination of any witnesses.
After the hearing the board of inquiry will deliberate
and decide whether or not to approve the
application and any conditions.

timeline for nationally Significant proposals
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Application lodged with EPA

EPA recommendation to Minister
(20 working days)
Environment Court
Minister’s direction
local authority
Board of Inquiry
NB: only applies to
request for regional
plan or plan change

Accept / reject decision
(30 working days)

Rejected

Accepted

Public notice and submission open

Submissions close
(20 working days later)

NB: only applies to
request for regional
plan or plan change

Public notice and further submissions

Nine months

Summary of submissions available

Further submissions close
(10 working days later)
Evidence Exchange
(as per inquiry procedures, but typically over
a 3 month period)

Expert conferencing and facilitation
(during evidence exchange and/or before the hearing
and/or during the hearing)

Pre-hearing conference

hearing
(average hearing is seven weeks)

Draft report and decision produced

Minor and technical comments on draft
(20 working days)

The final decision report due
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Output 7: Exclusive Economic Zone applications, assessments
and compliance
The EPA is responsible for decision making and enforcement of applications for marine consents, and for monitoring
compliance under the Exclusive Economic Zone and Continental Shelf (Environmental Effects) Act 2012 (EEZ Act).
This includes the processing of marine consents to operate in the EEZ, managing permitted activities, determining
Rulings for existing operations, monitoring activity and undertaking enforcement in the EEZ. From February 2014,
activities involved in exploratory drilling for oil and gas were classified as non-notified discretionary activities under
new EEZ Act regulations. Applications for these activities are not publicly notified and the EPA cannot consider public
submissions or information provided to it. However, applicants are still required to identify and consult with existing
interest-holders (including iwi authorities and fisheries groups) who may be affected by the proposed activity.

What we delivered
The EEZ Act came into force on 28 June 2013, making the EPA the regulatory authority for the environmental effects of
activities taking place within the EEZ. During the year we received six applications for marine consents to operate in the EEZ,
and completed one hearing (Trans-Tasman Resources).
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How well we delivered it
Output 7: Exclusive Economic Zone applications, assessments and compliance
Performance measures

Standard 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Standard met?

Actual 2012-13

Staffing and delegations are in place, and functions
have been costed.

All

Partially
achieved

Partially
achieved

All

Processes and systems have been written, tested and
are in place when required.

All

Partially
achieved

Partially
achieved

All

Effective communication channels with all
stakeholders are established.

All

Achieved

Yes

All

Impact assessments submitted under interim
measures are reviewed and recommendations made
to operators.

All

Achieved

Yes

All

All processes are undertaken within statutory
timeframes.

All

Achieved

Yes

All

Achieved

Achieved

Yes

N/A – New
Performance
Measure

A monitoring, compliance and enforcement
programme is developed and signed off by the
Board by 30 December 2013 and implemented in
accordance with the programme by 30 June 2014.

Note: The partially achieved results refer to the need for ongoing review and refinement that became apparent since these measures were implemented.

Further performance information
EEZ applications
Application type

Notified Marine consent

Forecast 2013-14

Received 2013-14

Outcome as at 30 June 2014

2

3

Consent for Trans-Tasman Resources Ltd
declined.
Two consents in process: Chatham Rock
Phosphate and OMV Maari

Non-notified marine consent

2

3

Three consents in process: AWE Oi 2,
OMV Whio, and STOS Maui 8 and Ruru 1.
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Tony Davies
Senior Advisor EEZ Applications
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Applications to the EPA for consents for
activity in the EEZ are scrutinised by someone who has nearly 20 years’ experience
around the world in the oil and gas
exploration industry – literally from
under the sea floor up.
EEZ Senior Advisor Tony Davies’ early industry experience
includes mud logging, which is collecting, processing,
logging and analysing geological samples brought to the
surface of a borehole by a drilling operation, and is a key
aspect of monitoring safety and efficiency.
Welsh-born Tony arrived at the EPA via a long route. He
went to the University of Portsmouth, where he gained
a BSc Hons in Geography and met and married his wife.
Not letting the dust settle, he moved to Australia in 1993
and started working for the oil and gas industry.
In 2005 he moved to south-east Asia, where he went
to work for a Vietnamese oil company on well-integrity
design for the company’s offshore drilling activity in
undersea fractured-granite basins. He worked for a rig
operator in China for a period, then returned to Vietnam
and worked for two years as the health and safety
manager for a company that was building, amongst
other projects, two 145m dive support vessels. This was
followed by a return to Australia and a number of years
working mostly on offshore rigs, which also included a
period as safety manager.
In 2013 Tony joined the EPA’s EEZ team, where he works
mostly on the non-notified marine consent process,
which took effect on 28 February 2014.
The application and information requirements for
non-notified consents are the same as for a notified
discretionary activity. The key process differences are
that the application is not publicly notified (although it is
published on the EPA website); the EPA cannot consider
public submissions; in making its decision, the EPA
considers whether it needs to request further information
or advice in accordance with the EEZ Act; and there is a
shorter statutory timeframe for assessing an application.
Tony’s industry background with a strong safety focus
is of assistance in managing applications for marine
consents – assessing whether the applications provide
all information required for them to be formally received
by the EPA, preparing staff reports on applications, and
ensuring that any additional information that may be
required by the decision-making committee is obtained
from the applicant or any other source.
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Output 8: Climate change response administration
Our primary activity under this output relates to the implementation and operation of the New Zealand Emissions
Trading Scheme and the New Zealand Emission Unit Register (NZEUR), specifically the administration of the non-forestry
allocation, entitlements and obligations under the Climate Change Response Act 2002. We also provide the facility for the
transfer and holding of units, allowing the carbon market to operate both domestically and within the Kyoto Protocol.

What we delivered
The New Zealand Government has made a long-term commitment to reducing our greenhouse gas emissions.
Our primary method for doing this is the Emissions Trading Scheme. The EPA administers the scheme and operates
the NZEUR which records unit holdings and Emissions Trading Scheme transactions. In December 2013, the EPA Board
approved replacement of the Register. The project is well underway and tracking to schedule: the new system is
expected to go live in 2015. A notable feature of our redevelopment process is the active inclusion of end users who
have diverse characteristics and needs. We have used their insights and experiences at every stage and are seeing the
benefits of this.
We operate an ongoing assistance and educational compliance programme for non-forestry emission returns, supported
by an increasing quality-assurance role, and a comprehensive business assurance programme has been introduced
across the group, including internal controls reporting and disaster recovery tests.
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How well we delivered it
Output 8: Climate change response administration
Performance measures

Standard 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Standard met?

Actual 2012-13

90% of applications for industrial allocations are
processed within four weeks of receiving the signed
application summary.

90%

100%

Yes

96%

98% of participants are accurately recorded in the
New Zealand Emission Unit Register within two
business days of receipt of a properly completed
application.

98%

98%

Yes

98%

Satisfied

Satisfied

Yes

Satisfied

5

5

Yes

4

10

10

Yes

10

Customer trust in the integrity and security of the
NZEUR and ETS systems and processes is greater than
75%.

More than
75%

66%

No

N/A – New
Performance
Measure

Customer satisfaction with the overall quality of
service delivery is greater than 75%

More than
75%

69%

No

70%

99%

99%

Yes

99%

Successfully
reconciled

Successfully
reconciled

Yes

Successfully
reconciled

The Ministry for the Environment is satisfied with
the timeliness and quality of EPA statutory and
international reporting.
Five audits of major allocation recipients under the ETS
are completed.
Ten audits of participating entities under the ETS are
completed.

The NZEUR is available for public access for 99% of the
time excluding scheduled outages.
The NZEUR is successfully reconciled with the
International Transaction Log.
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Michelle Ward
Emissions Trading Scheme Operations Manager

The EPA’s aim is to make it as easy as
possible for people to comply with their
requirements under the Emissions Trading
Scheme.
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Some 2,500 businesses as diverse as smelting,
forestry, coal mining, and growing tomatoes, interact
with the Scheme each year. Whether from a large or
small business, these people may have more or less
understanding of how to meet their obligations on time.
It’s not always straight-forward to newcomers, agrees
Operations Manager Michelle Ward. “But mostly the help
needed is just about taking people through the process
and reassuring them that they are doing it correctly.
“We want to make it as easy as possible to comply.
That’s why we have a call centre to help, lots of guidance
material, and we’re happy if people get in touch with us
directly. We don’t want there to be any barriers to people
being able to meet their obligations correctly.”
Michelle has a commerce degree in Management and
Commercial Law from Victoria University in Wellington.
Her first job after graduating was at ACC; then she joined
the Sustainable Business Group at the Ministry for the
Environment in 2006, working on climate change issues.
Michelle started acquiring her vast knowledge of the
Emissions Trading Scheme in 2010, when she joined a
project team at the Ministry for the Environment that
was developing the regulations for industrial allocations.
From there, she became part of the team doing the first
industrial allocations, and was made team manager in
2011.
That team, together with the Registry team from the
then Ministry for Economic Development, joined the
newly-formed Environmental Protection Authority in
December 2011.
While Michelle is happy that members of her team may
need to spend half an hour on the phone, helping talk
someone through how to fill out a form for the first
time, there is a big project underway to improve the
systems. Next year, many manual processes and the
current Register will be replaced and the new system
will have online forms that step people through the
process in a simplified way.
Having a really good, robust system will make life easier
for all, but Michelle thinks there will still be times when
people need to talk to us about their specific situations.
Callers will continue to get the trademark warm
reception – “It’s easier for people to talk to you if they
can hear a smile in the tone of your voice.”
Service performance

Part C

The
organisation
and its
capability
This section outlines how the
organisation is governed and how
we are developing our capability

Governance
The EPA comprises the Board and staff. The EPA reports
to the Minister for the Environment and to the Minister
for Climate Change on issues relevant to their
respective portfolios.
The EPA Board has between six and eight members
appointed by the Minister for the Environment. The Board
is responsible for the governance of the organisation,
including setting strategic direction and monitoring
performance. It is also responsible for the statutory
functions set out in legislation, some of which are
delegated to Board committees or the Chief Executive.
The Board usually meets monthly to carry out governance
functions and deal with major issues. Out-of-session
decisions are made as required. The Board has delegated a
range of powers to committees.

Members of the EPA Board
Kerry Prendergast (Chair)
Dr Kevin Thompson (Deputy Chair)
Anake Goodall (to 1 June 2014)
Tim Lusk
Taria Tahana (Ngāti Pikiao, Ngāti Mākino and Tapuika)
Gillian Wratt
Dr Nicki Crauford
Kura Denness (Te Atiawa)(from 1 June 2014)
Andrew von Dadelszen
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Statutory committees
The EPA is supported by two statutory committees:
the Māori Advisory Committee (Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga
Taiao) and the Hazardous Substances and New
Organisms Committee.

Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao
Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao (Ngā Kaihautū) has up to eight
members who are appointed by the Board under Part 2
of the EPA Act 2011. Their purpose is to provide the Board
with advice on policy, process and decision making by the
EPA. This enables them to ensure that the organisation’s
processes are appropriate for achieving effective Māori
participation.

Members of Ngā Kaihautū
Tikanga Taiao
Steven (Tīpene) Wilson, Tumuaki (Chair), Ngāti Koroki
Kahukura, Ngāti Apakura, Ngāti Tura, Ngāti Te Ngākau.
Dr Nicholas (Nick) Roskruge, Tumuaki Tuarua (Deputy
Chair), Ātiawa ki Taranaki, Ngāti Tama.
Dr James (Jamie) Ataria, Rongomaiwahine, Ngāti
Kahungunu, Ngāti Tuwharetoa.
James (Jim) Doherty, Ngāti Tāwhaki, Ngāti Kahungunu,
Ngāti Ruāpani, Ngāti Awa, Ngāti Hokopū, Ngāi Tūhoe.
Wharemāwhai (Mina) Timutimu, Te Atiawa and Ngāti Rāhiri.
Marino Tahi, Ngai Tūhoe
Kelly May, Ngāti Kahungunu, Ngāti Marangatūhetaua
Glenice Paine, Te Atiawa, Ngāi Tahu
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The Hazardous Substances and
New Organisms Committee
The EPA Board appoints a HSNO Committee under the
Crown Entities Act 2004. This Committee currently consists
of eight members and is chaired by the Deputy Chair
of the EPA Board, Dr Kevin Thompson. This Committee
hears and decides applications made under the HSNO
Act, except for some decisions which are non-notified or
required to be made rapidly (less than 10 days). The EPA
Board has delegated decision-making powers for certain
low-risk decisions to staff members and third parties.
The EPA Board can review and remove these delegations
if it has any cause for concern.

Members of the
Hazardous Substances and
New Organisms Committee
Dr Kevin Thompson (Chair)
Helen Atkins LLB
Dr Kerry Laing
Dr Louise Malone
Dr Shaun Ogilvie (Ngāti Awa, Te Arawa)
Dr Deborah Read
Damian Stone, LLB (Ngāti Kahungunu)
Dr John Taylor
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Board committees
The Board has appointed two standing committees to
assist it in carrying out its governance responsibilities.
These are:
the Audit and Risk Committee, which oversees
the accountability processes and financial and
organisational risk matters
the Performance Review and Remuneration Committee,
which monitors the Chief Executive’s performance and
approves salaries for senior staff members.

Staff
Staff members of the EPA support the Board in carrying
out its statutory functions and are responsible for
delegated decision making in a number of areas.
The organisation is structured into six Groups, each of
which is led by a general manager. They are:
Applications and Assessment
Compliance
Corporate Services
Emissions Trading Scheme
Kaupapa Kura Taiao
Policy and Legal.
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EEZ decision-making committees
The EPA makes decisions for marine consents under the
EEZ Act through delegated decision-making committees
(which must include at least one EPA Board member).
Other decisions under the EEZ Act are delegated by the
EPA Board to the Chief Executive and EPA staff, where
appropriate. The Board can review and remove
delegations if it has any cause for concern.
RMA Boards of Inquiry
Boards of Inquiry are not part of the EPA. They are
appointed by the Minister for the Environment and make
decisions on Nationally Significant Proposals. Over the
years, these have included major roading projects, a prison,
a fish farm and the redevelopment of a major city area.
A Board of Inquiry must have between three and five
members, with the Chairperson being a current, former,
or retired Environment Judge or a retired High Court
Judge. The Minister has responsibility for deciding whether
a matter is of national significance, and if so, how it
should be considered, either by a Board of Inquiry, the
Environment Court or be referred to the local authority for
the decision-making process. The Board of Inquiry must
produce a final decision and report within a nine calendar
month period (less non-working days3), although the
Minister may grant a time extension if required.

Developing organisational
capability
The focus for developing organisational capability for the
third year of EPA’s operations has been on consolidating
gains from initiatives from years one and two as well as
new initiatives. These included:
Embedding the vision and values through the
performance management system and the review
and enhancement of general manager and third-tier
managers’ competencies. Staff and managers have, in
response to the results of the employee satisfaction
survey, been involved in developing a set of initiatives
to work on.
Enhancing the online induction programme to make
sure new staff have consistent information on the EPA
and its culture, and that all staff regularly refresh their
understanding of key modules such as Health and Safety.
Training and development of the third-tier managers’
Operational Leadership Team.
Investing in our IT systems and project capabilities
throughout the EPA.
Increasing the time spent on training
and development.
Secondments inside and outside the EPA.
A new on-line staff training module on service standards
was introduced as part of the wider initiative to support
the EPA’s drive to provide “fair, transparent and timely
service.” There is continued effort around both career and
leadership development. Career progression guidelines
have been released with workshops for staff planned
for later in 2014. Secondment guidelines have also been
released to highlight to staff the opportunities at the EPA.
Work is underway on a managers’ handbook to support
them as they recruit, manage and develop staff. We are
also carrying out preparatory work for the development of
a new intranet to replace the existing out-dated system:
the new intranet will be rolled out in 2014-15.

‘Non-working days’ are weekends, statutory holidays or the period between 20
December and 15 January.

3
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Measuring our progress
During the year we have been monitoring our progress towards key capability targets:
Target

Achievement

Staff development and performance plans will be in place
and reviewed regularly.

The performance plan template has been reviewed and
enhanced for ease of use. A plan was put in place for all staff
and regular updates were carried out during the year.

Individual training needs will be assessed and programmes Individual training needs were identified from performance
put in place.
plans and from discussions during the year. A number of
courses were run in-house including plain English writing,
project management, “How Government Works”, time
management, and coaching. A workshop on retirement
was run, and a further workshop is planned. External
coaching opportunities are available to individual staff.
Leadership training initiatives will be in place.

The investment in the 2013 leadership course has resulted
in the increased third-tier capability. This has been
demonstrated in the delegation, by the executive team,
of greater operational decision making to this group. The
third-tier management group meets regularly and has
continued its development through a programme of
in-house educational sessions. The government Natural
Resources Sector Building Capable Managers programme
is utilised to develop team leaders, project leaders and
others who are identified with leadership potential. EPA
staff members are scheduled to attend a new programme,
Aspiring Leaders, which is being rolled out across the
Natural Resources Sector.

External salary comparisons will be conducted regularly
and adjustments made as required.

The Hay Group has been contracted to provide information
on market movement and where required also to conduct
job evaluations to make sure that the EPA can retain market
parity. Information on market movement is also gathered
from other sources.
Adjustments are made to the salary bands annually in line
with market movement.

Recruitment activity, trends, and time to fill vacancies will
be monitored and reported.

Recruitment activity is tracked and reported to the
Executive Leadership Team on a fortnightly basis.

Responses to entry and exit surveys will be reviewed and All staff entering the organisation are provided with
recommendations for improvements implemented where induction surveys after 2 and 8 weeks. All staff leaving the
feasible.
EPA have the opportunity to complete an exit survey.
The results of these are provided to relevant managers and
changes are made where appropriate.
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Good employer obligations
The EPA recognises the importance of putting in place a range of measures that have been identified as key markers of a
good employer. We have collected data on these during the year, and used them for a benchmarking exercise, reporting
to the Human Rights Commission, and to improve our performance. Obligations are monitored in the following areas:
leadership, accountability and culture
recruitment, selection and induction
employee development, promotion, and the exit processes
flexibility and work design
remuneration, recognition and conditions
prevention of harassment and bullying
maintaining a safe and healthy environment.
Good employer obligations

Result

Leadership, accountability and culture
Ensure that the vision developed for the organisation
articulates our commitment to equality and diversity.

The EPA’s vision of being a world-leading regulator is
supported by organisational policies and processes
(Code of Conduct and Recruitment) that articulate our
commitment to equality and diversity.

Encourage the development of a culture that is supportive The leadership team has been working closely with staff
and equitable for all staff.
to ensure that the EPA values are part of the culture of
the organisation.
Outstanding contributions to work deliverables and the
demonstration of EPA values are acknowledged and an
award given by the Chief Executive at the monthly staff
meeting. The third-tier management group also recognises
exemplary staff contributions.
The EPA recognises the importance of regular review of its
programmes, and the annual workplace survey provides
feedback that is used to evolve the culture in response to
the changing demographics and workforce.
Encourage the development of a learning culture that
will enhance the EPA’s performance while supporting the
aspirations of the staff.

There is a commitment to staff learning which
encompasses secondments and management
opportunities, as well as formal and informal learning.
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Recruitment, selection and induction
Ensure the continued use of robust and transparent
recruitment and selection processes.

The management of recruitment by our Human
Resources specialists uses transparent hiring processes to
ensure not only that legislative requirements are met, but
that the best people are selected for employment.

Use innovative channels to attract diverse applicants.

We recognise the importance of understanding, attracting
and valuing a diverse workforce. We use a range of
channels to attract candidates, including newspapers,
websites, job fairs, international agencies and journals. We
continue to consider new ways to connect to our various
target audiences

Monitor candidate and workforce demographics in relation The EPA recognises the importance of having equal
to age, ethnicity, gender and disability.
employment policies in place to eliminate barriers to
employment. Information is collected relating to staff
demographics and reports are delivered to management
on a regular basis.
Employee development, promotion and exit processes
The EPA will provide equal access to personal development Each staff member has a development plan and is
and activities that may lead to promotion.
encouraged to take up opportunities for advancement
or personal development. Career progression and
secondment guidelines have been issued to support staff
and managers.
Our performance management practices will be
transparent and fair.

Staff are assessed against objectives and competencies
that are agreed and signed off at the beginning of the
year. Staff performance plans are reviewed with staff
on a regular basis during the year. An annual review
is also undertaken.

Staff will have the opportunity to complete a confidential
exit survey.

All staff leaving the EPA are offered the opportunity to
complete a confidential exit survey, either online or in
person. Themes from the survey are fed back to the HR
Manager.

Flexibility and work design
Work towards an organisation-wide flexible work
programme to recognise the needs of parents and other
care givers.

Managers engage with individual staff about their
wellbeing. Support for individual needs can include
working flexible hours, working part-time and working
from home.

Provide facilities for the use of parents.

There is a private room available for parents.

Remuneration, recognition and conditions
Continue to provide transparent, equitable and genderneutral job evaluation processes.

Our job evaluation processes include a regular review
of job descriptions and the external independent review
of job ‘bands’ and remuneration levels, in order to ensure
transparent, equitable and gender-neutral job
evaluation processes.

The remuneration system will be reviewed regularly.

The remuneration system is reviewed annually.
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Prevention of Harassment and bullying
Relevant policies and the code of conduct will be
promoted to staff.

We recognise that it is critical to review and articulate
key policies and practices to all staff. We do this through
on-line policy training modules, updates at monthly staff
meetings and intranet updates. All new staff must read
the code of conduct as part of their wider induction, and
confirm in writing that they have read it.

Managers and staff are trained in their responsibilities.

All new staff are provided with targeted on-line pre
induction modules and face-to-face induction training to
ensure they are made aware of their responsibilities.

The leadership team ensures that there is zero tolerance of The EPA has zero tolerance to bullying and, if identified,
harassment and bullying.
it would be dealt with promptly and in an appropriate
manner. The EPA is developing a separate harassment
and bullying policy.
Safe and healthy environment
Create an environment that supports employee
participation in health and safety.

The EPA has an active and engaged Health and Safety
Committee comprising staff from across the organisation.
Health and Safety incidents are actively managed. To
maximise best practice, the Committee engages regularly
with the wider Public Sector Health and Safety network.

Take a proactive approach to employee health and wellbeing.

All staff receive a worksite assessment when they join
the EPA, when they shift to a new desk, or have signs
of discomfort. Yoga and massage sessions are provided
onsite, at staff’s own expense.

Staff will have easy access to the Employee Assistance
Programme.

The EPA promotes the Employee Assistance Programme’s
website and 0800 number on the staff intranet, through
the Human Resources Team, and on posters.

Our human resources policies will reflect these
commitments and our progress will be reported to the
Human Rights Commission annually.

Our human resources policies are reviewed against
legislation changes, relevant legal precedent, effective
equal employment opportunities and good practice,
to ensure that they meet the requirements of the
organisation. We report our progress to the Human
Rights Commission annually.

The organisation and its capability

Part D
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2014
Actual
2014
$000

Budget
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

2

22,492

22,492

22,137

329

140

356

3

11,838

9,602

5,744

28

34,659

32,234

28,237

Notes

Income
Revenue from the Crown
Interest income
Other income
Total revenue
Expenditure
Personnel costs

4

15,315

14,607

12,577

Board remuneration

21

398

392

397

EEZ Decision-making Committee remuneration

21

389

1,128

-

Boards of Inquiry remuneration

2,312

1,969

1,031

Depreciation and amortisation expense

1,546

1,753

1,516

6

15,925

14,401

11,410

28

35,885

34,250

26,931

(1,226)

(2,016)

1,306

-

-

-

(1,226)

(2,016)

1,306

Other expenses
Total expenditure
Surplus/ (deficit)
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Note 1 refers to the financial policies of the EPA starting on page 57.
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014
Notes

Actual
2014
$000

Budget
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Cash and cash equivalents

7

2,067

2,490

3,826

Debtors and other receivables

8

4,091

950

1,178

Investments

9

4,400

4,000

6,500

146

104

78

10,704

7,544

11,582

Assets
Current assets

Prepayments
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

10

2,397

2,420

2,927

Intangible assets

11

4,327

4,340

3,556

6,724

6,760

6,483

17,428

14,304

18,065

12

2,602

2,020

2,049

Total non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Creditors and other payables
Employee entitlements

13

1,209

1,044

1,108

Operating Lease

18

71

-

70

Provisions

14

-

-

-

Borrowings

15

-

-

-

3,882

3,064

3,227

13

121

137

117

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Employee entitlements
Operating Lease

18

423

-

493

Provisions

14

-

-

-

Borrowings

15

-

-

-

544

137

610

4,426

3,201

3,837

13,002

11,103

14,228

13,002

11,103

14,228

13,002

11,103

14,228

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
General funds
Total equity
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2014
Notes

Balance at 1 July

Actual
2014
$000

Budget
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

14,228

13,119

13,922

Capital contribution

16

-

-

-

Repayment of capital

16

-

-

(1,000)

(1,226)

(2,016)

1,306

13,002

11,103

14,228

Surplus / (deficit) for the year
Balance at 30 June

16

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2014
Notes

Actual
2014
$000

Budget
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

22,492

22,492

22,137

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from the Crown

2

Interest received

363

134

306

8,829

9,622

5,593

Payments to suppliers

(18,493)

(17,998)

(12,523)

Payments to employees

(15,209)

(14,284)

(12,460)

88

-

(249)

(1,930)

(34)

2,804

Receipts from sale of investments

2,100

2,000

-

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(379)

(450)

(1,410)

(1,550)

(1,560)

(553)

-

-

(2,500)

171

(10)

(4,463)

Capital contribution

-

-

-

Repayment of capital

-

-

(1,000)

Net cash flows from financing activities

-

-

(1,000)

(1,759)

(44)

(2,659)

3,826

2,534

6,485

2,067

2,490

3,826

Receipts from other sources

Goods and services tax (net)
Net cash flows from operating activities

17

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of intangible assets
Acquisitions of investments
Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in note 28.
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Statement of accounting policies for the year ended 30 June 2014
REPORTING ENTITY
The Environmental Protection Authority is a Crown entity for the purposes of the Crown Entities Act 2004 and is referred
to throughout this Annual Report as the EPA. This inclusive term is used unless referring to the exercise of specific
statutory powers and functions or specific responsibilities of the legal entity, or where reference to one of the elements
of the EPA is required for clarity. The EPA was established under the Environmental Protection Authority Act 2011 (EPA
Act) and commenced activities on 1 July 2011. The EPA is domiciled in New Zealand and the ultimate parent is the
New Zealand Crown.
The primary objective of the EPA is to contribute to the efficient, effective, and transparent management of
New Zealand’s environment and resources – natural and physical – and to enable New Zealand to meet its international
obligations under the environmental Acts shown in Appendix 4.
Accordingly, the EPA has designated itself as a public benefit entity for the purposes of New Zealand Equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS).
The financial statements of the EPA are for the year ended 30 June 2014, and were approved by the Board of the
Environmental Protection Authority on 31 October 2014.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Crown Entities Act 2004,
which includes the requirement to comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP).
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP as appropriate for a public benefit entity
and they comply with NZ IFRS.
Measurement basis
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except where modified by the revaluation of
certain items of property, plant and equipment, and the measurement of investments at fair value.
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
($000). The functional currency of the EPA is New Zealand dollars.
Changes in accounting policies
There have been no revisions to accounting standards during the financial year which have had an effect on the
financial statements.
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Standards, amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted
The Minister of Commerce has approved a new Accounting Standards Framework (incorporating a Tier Strategy)
developed by the External Reporting Board (XRB). Under this Accounting Standards Framework, the EPA is classified
as a Tier 1 reporting entity and it will be required to apply full Public Benefit Entity Accounting Standards (PAS).
These standards have been developed by the XRB based on current International Public Sector Accounting Standards.
The effective date for the new standards for public sector entities is for reporting periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014. This means the EPA expects to transition to the new standards in preparing its 30 June 2015 financial
statements. While the EPA has not fully assessed the implications of the new Accounting Standards Framework
at this time, we believed that there will be no significant impact on the financial statements.
Due to the change in the Accounting Standards Framework for public benefit entities, it is expected that all new
NZ IFRS and amendments to existing NZ IFRS will not be applicable to public benefit entities. Therefore, the XRB has
effectively frozen the financial reporting requirements for public benefit entities up until the new Accounting Standard
Framework is effective. Accordingly, no disclosure has been made about new or amended NZ IFRS that exclude public
benefit entities from their scope.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.
Revenue from the Crown
The EPA is primarily funded through revenue received from the Crown, which is restricted in its use for the EPA to meet its
objectives as specified in the Statement of Intent.
Revenue from the Crown is recognised when earned and is reported in the financial period to which it relates. Operating
revenue from the Crown is subject to appropriation under Vote: Environment. The total amount appropriated within the
Non-Departmental Output Class is accounted for as income.
Interest
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. Interest income on an impaired financial asset is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.
Provision of services
Revenue derived through the provision of services to third parties is recognised in proportion to the stage of completion
at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the stage of work performed.
Capital charge
Changes to the capital charge rules from 1 July 2011 mean that the EPA will not be required to pay any capital charge,
since the EPA total net assets did not exceed $15 million.
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Leases
Operating leases
Leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the EPA are
classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the surplus or deficit over the lease term as an integral part of the total
lease expense.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, and other short-term highly-liquid
investments, with original maturities of three months or less.
Debtors and other receivables
Short-term debtors and other receivables are recorded at their face value, less any provision for impairment.
Impairment of a receivable is established when there is objective evidence that the EPA will not be able to collect
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter into bankruptcy, and default in payments are considered indicators that the debtor is impaired.
The amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted using the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. When the receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for receivables. Overdue
receivables that have been renegotiated are reclassified as current (ie not past due).
Investments
At each balance date, the EPA assesses whether there is any objective evidence that an investment is impaired. The EPA
investments are all in bank deposits.
Bank Deposits
Investments in bank deposits are initially measured at fair value (plus transaction costs).
After initial recognition, investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
provision for impairment.
For bank deposits, impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the EPA will not be able to collect
amounts due according to the original terms of the deposit. Significant financial difficulties of the bank, probability
that the bank will enter into receivership or liquidation, and default in payments are considered indicators that the
deposit is impaired.
Equity Investments
The EPA does not have any equity investments.
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Accounting for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
The EPA does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks
arising from financing activities. The EPA does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
Non-current assets held for sale
The EPA does not have any assets that are classified as held for sale.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of computer hardware, furniture and fixtures, leasehold improvements and
office equipment.
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or valuation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Additions
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the EPA and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.
Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated.
In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired
at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent costs
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow to the EPA and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the surplus or deficit as they
are incurred.
Disposals
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. Gains
and losses on disposals are included in the surplus or deficit.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment at rates that will write off the
cost (or valuation) of the assets to their estimated residual values over their useful lives. The useful lives and associated
depreciation rates of major classes of assets have been estimated as follows:
Computer hardware
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Office equipment
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3 to 4 years

(25% – 33%)

6 years

(16.7%)

6 to 9 years

(11% – 16.7%)

6 years

(16.7%)
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated remaining useful lives
of the improvements, whichever is the shorter.
The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and adjusted if applicable, at least each financial year-end.
Intangible assets
Software acquisition and development
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and implement the
specific software.
Costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal use are recognised as an intangible asset.
Direct costs include software development and the appropriate portion of employee costs and relevant overheads.
Staff training costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. Costs associated with maintaining computer software
are recognised as an expense when incurred. Costs associated with research activities are recognised as an expense
when incurred.
Costs associated with development and maintenance of the EPA’s website are recognised as an expense when incurred.
Amortisation
The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life.
Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised. The
amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated as follows.
Computer software

3 to 8 years

(12.5% – 33%)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances show that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Value in use is depreciated replacement cost for an asset where the future economic benefits or service potential of
the asset are not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to generate net cash inflows and where the EPA would, if
deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future economic benefits or service potential.
If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and the carrying amount is writtendown to the recoverable amount. For non-financial assets, the total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or
deficit. The reversal of an impairment loss is also recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Creditors and other payables
Short-term creditors and other payables are recorded at face value.
Borrowings
The EPA does not have any borrowings.
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Employee entitlements
Short-term employee entitlements
Employee benefits that are due to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee
renders the related services are measured at nominal values based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay.
These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned but not yet taken at balance date, and
sick leave where applicable.
A liability for sick leave is recognised to the extent that absences in the coming year are expected to be greater than the
sick leave entitlements earned in the coming year. The amount is calculated based on the unused sick leave entitlement
that can be carried forward at balance date, to the extent that it will be used by staff to cover those future absences.
A liability and an expense for performance payments are recognised where there is a contractual obligation or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
Long-term employee entitlements
Employee benefits that are due to be settled beyond 12 months after the end of period in which the employee renders
the related service, such as long service and retirement leave entitlements, have been calculated on an actuarial basis.
The calculations are based on:
likely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years of service, years to entitlement, the likelihood that staff will
reach the point of entitlement and contractual entitlements information; and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
The risk-free discount rates and the salary inflation rate are published by The Treasury for consolidation into
The Government’s financial statement at 30 June 2014.
Superannuation schemes
Defined contribution schemes
KiwiSaver is accounted for as a defined contribution superannuation scheme; the obligation for contributions to
KiwiSaver is recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit as incurred.
Provisions
A provision for future expenditure of an uncertain amount or timing is recognised when there is a present obligation
(either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense and is included
in “finance costs”.
Equity
Equity is measured as the difference between the total assets and total liabilities. Equity consists of general funds.
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Goods and Service Tax (GST)
All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables, which are stated on
a GST inclusive basis. Where GST is not recoverable as input tax, it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is included as part of
receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.
The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is classified
as an operating cash flow in the Statement of Cash Flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.
Income Tax
The EPA is a public authority and so is exempt from the payment of income tax. Therefore, no provision has been made
for income tax.
Budget figures
The budget figures are derived from the Statement of Intent as approved by the Board at the beginning of the financial
year. The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP and using accounting policies that are
consistent with those adopted by the Board in preparing these financial statements.
Cost Allocation
The EPA has determined the cost of outputs using the cost allocation outlined below.
Direct costs are those costs directly attributed to an output: they are charged directly to outputs.
Indirect costs are those costs that cannot be identified in an economically feasible manner with a specific output. They
are charged to outputs based on cost drivers and related activity or usage information. Depreciation and property and
other premises costs, such as maintenance, are charged on the basis of staff numbers. Personnel costs are charged on
the basis of actual time incurred.
All other costs are assigned to outputs on a proportional basis, using direct personnel time as the cost driver, based on
actual data collected through the time recording system.
There have been no changes to the cost allocation methodology since the publication of the Statement of Intent.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
In preparing these financial statements, the EPA has made estimates and assumptions about the future. These estimates
and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations or future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed as follows.
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Estimating useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment
At each balance date, the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed. Assessing the
appropriateness of useful life and residual value estimates of these assets requires a number of factors to be considered
such as the physical condition of the asset, the expected period of use of the asset by the EPA and the expected disposal
proceeds from the future sale of the asset.
An incorrect estimate of the useful life or residual value will affect the depreciation expense recognised in the surplus or
deficit, and the carrying amount of the asset in the Statement of Financial Position.
The EPA minimises the risk of this estimation uncertainty by:
physical inspection of assets; and
asset replacement programmes
The EPA has not made significant changes to past assumptions concerning useful lives and residual values.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in note 10.
Retirement and long service leave
Note 13 provide an analysis of the exposure in relation to estimates and uncertainties surrounding retirement and long
service leave liabilities.
Critical judgements in applying the EPA’s accounting policies
Management has exercised the following critical judgement in applying accounting policies:
Lease classification
Determining whether a lease agreement is a finance or an operating lease requires judgement as to whether the
agreement transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the EPA.
Judgement is required on various aspects that include, but are not limited to, the fair value of the leased asset, the
economic life of the leased asset, whether or not to include renewal options in the lease term and determining an
appropriate discount rate to calculate the present value of the minimum lease payments. Classification as a finance lease
means the asset is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as property, plant and equipment, whereas for an
operating lease no such asset is recognised.
The EPA has exercised its judgement on the appropriate classification of equipment leases and has determined that a
number of lease arrangements are not finance leases.
Classification of intangible assets
The EPA purchased and developed a number of databases for the management of HSNO Act applications.
These databases are estimated to have a useful life of eight years. The EPA also took over the New Zealand Emission
Unit Register developed by the then Ministry of Economic Development (MED) for the administration of the Emissions
Units. The estimated useful life of the Register for accounting purposes is about six years. If a complete revamp of any
database or the Register is required, the unamortised portion will be written off in the surplus or deficit when the
replacement software is implemented.
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2. Revenue from the Crown
The EPA has been provided with funding from the Crown for specific purposes as set out in its founding legislation and
the scope of the relevant government appropriations. Apart from these restrictions, there are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies attached to government funding.
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

20,992

20,992

1,500

2,645

-

(1,500)

22,492

22,137

Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

311

315

76

95

115

184

Resource Management Act cost recovery fees

8,611

5,132

Exclusive Economic Zone cost recovery fees

2,632

-

93

18

11,838

5,744

Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

14,251

11,680

Employer contributions to defined contribution plans

351

213

Increase / (decrease) in employee entitlements (Note 13)

105

150

Other staff-related costs

608

534

15,315

12,577

Revenue from the Crown
As per Supplementary Estimates
Plus expense transfer from previous year
Less expense transfer to following year
Total

3. Other revenue

Hazardous Substances Part 5 application fees
New Organisms Part 5 applications fees
Hazardous Substances Part 6 application fees

Other fees and revenue
Total other revenue

4. Personnel costs

Salaries and wages

Total personnel costs

Employer contributions to defined contribution plans include contributions to KiwiSaver and to the Government
Superannuation Fund.
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5. Capital charge
The EPA does not pay a capital charge to the Crown on its taxpayers’ funds, as its net assets are below the threshold
of $15 million.

6. Other expenses
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Audit Fees

55

53

Staff travel

1,069

855

Operating lease expense

1,307

1,453

EEZ Decision-making Committee expenses

1,292

-

Boards of Inquiry expenses

3,844

2,483

Consultancy

4,670

2,863

Other

3,688

3,703

15,925

11,410

Total other expenses

Consultancy expenses exclude consultancy for Boards of Inquiry. “Other” expenses include expenses for computing and
telecommunications, office stationery, publications and office maintenance.

7. Cash and cash equivalents
Actual
2014
$000

Cash on hand and at bank
Cash equivalents – term deposits (90 days or less)
Total cash and cash equivalents
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Actual
2013
$000

2,067

1,826

-

2,000

2,067

3,826
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8. Debtors and other receivables
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Debtors and other receivables

1,809

377

Accrued revenue

2,227

712

Accrued interest

55

89

-

-

4,091

1,178

Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

4,400

6,500

4,400

6,500

Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Term deposits maturities of 4 months with average maturity of 120 days
(2013: 4 to 12 months with average maturity of 243 days).

4,400

6,500

Weighted average effective interest rate

4.08%

4.22%

Less provision for impairment
Total debtors and other receivables
The carrying value of receivables approximates their fair value.
There is no carrying amount of receivables that are past due and renegotiated.

9. Investments

Current investments are represented by:
Term deposits
Total current portion and investments
There were no impairment provisions for investments.
Maturity analysis and effective interest rates of term deposits
The maturity dates and weighted average effective interest rates for term deposits are as follows:

The carrying amounts of term deposits with maturities less than 12 months approximate their fair value.
There were two term deposits, both with four months maturity made in 2014 and both were invested at the interest rate
of 4.08% (2013: five term deposits between 4 to 12 months at rates between 4.05% and 4.30%). As these term deposits
were at a fixed interest rate and measured at amortised cost, an increase or decrease in interest rates during the period
did not affect the measurement of the investments. Hence, there was no impact on the surplus or equity.
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10. Property, plant and equipment
Movements for each class of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Computer
hardware
$000

Furniture
and fittings
$000

Office
equipmentowned
$000

Leasehold
improvements
$000

TOTAL
$000

2,329

621

470

2,083

5,503

Additions

263

600

31

516

1,410

Disposals

(145)

-

-

(1,019)

(1,164)

2,447

1,221

501

1,580

5,749

2,447

1,221

501

1,580

5,749

Additions

248

128

3

-

379

Disposals

(838)

-

(24)

(81)

(943)

1,857

1,349

480

1,499

5,185

1,494

414

337

1,004

3,249

Depreciation expense

425

123

31

144

723

Elimination on disposal

(145)

-

-

(1,005)

(1,150)

1,774

537

368

143

2,822

1,774

537

368

143

2,822

Depreciation expense

416

158

36

157

767

Elimination on disposal

(774)

-

(26)

(1)

(801)

1,416

695

378

299

2,788

Cost or valuation
Balance at 1 July 2012

Balance at 30 June 2013
Balance at 1 July 2013

Balance at 30 June 2014
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2012

Balance at 30 June 2013
Balance at 1 July 2013

Balance at 30 June 2014
Carrying amounts
At 1 July 2012

835

207

133

1,079

2,254

At 1 July 2013

673

684

133

1,437

2,927

At 30 June 2014

441

654

102

1,200

2,397

There is no Work in Progress balance for property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2014 (2013: Nil).
No impairment was established for any property, plant and equipment.
There are no finance leases at 30 June 2014.
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11. Intangible assets
Movement for each class of intangible asset is as follows:
Acquired
software
$000

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2012

7,300

Additions

818

Disposals

-

Balance at 30 June 2013

8,118

Balance at 1 July 2013

8,118

Additions

1,550

Disposals

(424)

Balance at 30 June 2014

9,244

Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss
Balance at 1 July 2012

3,769

Amortisation expenses

793

Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2013
Balance at 1 July 2013

4,562
4,562

Amortisation expenses
Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2014

779
(424)
4,917

Carrying amounts
At 1 July 2012

3,531

At 1 July 2013

3,556

At 30 June 2014

4,327

Work in progress for intangible assets at 30 June 2014 was $1,240,000 (2013: $332,000).
There are no restrictions over the title of the EPA’s intangible assets, nor are any intangible assets pledged as security
for liabilities.
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12. Creditors and other payables

Creditors
Income in advance
Accrued expenses
Other payables
Total creditors and other payables

Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

1,035

969

12

75

1,189

738

366

267

2,602

2,049

Creditors and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms, therefore the carrying
value of creditors and other payables approximates their fair value.

13. Employee entitlements
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

473

347

Current employee entitlements are represented by:
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued performance payments

114

147

Annual leave

606

586

16

28

1,209

1,108

110

105

11

12

121

117

1,330

1,225

Long service leave
Total current employee entitlements
Non-current employee entitlements are represented by:
Long service leave
Retirement leave
Total non-current employee entitlements
Total employee entitlements

The present value of the long service and retirement leave obligations depend on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using the model issued by The Treasury. Two key assumptions used in calculating this
liability are the discount rates and the salary inflation factor. Any changes in these assumptions will affect the carrying
amount of the liability.
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The discount rates and the salary inflation factor were published by The Treasury in July 2014 for the purposes of
determining liability at 30 June 2014. The discount rates used were: 1 year: 3.7% (2013: 2.71%); 2 years: 4.04% (2013:
3.14%); and 3 or more years: 5.50% (2013: 5.5%). The salary inflation factor was 3.5% (2013: 3.5%).
If the discount rates were to differ by 1% from that used, with all other factors held constant, the carrying amount of the
long service and retirement leave liability would be an estimated $6,000 (2013: $8,000) higher or lower.
If the long term salary inflation factor were to differ by 1% from that used, with all other factors held constant, the carrying
amount of the long service and retirement liability would be an estimated $8,000 (2013: $10,000) higher or lower.

14. Provisions
As the EPA has no lease make-good clause in its current accommodation lease, there was no provision made. The
provision for onerous contract was released when the previous accommodation lease expired on 31 March 2013.
Provisions were made for the estimated cost expected to be incurred in 2013 to reinstate leased accommodation at the
conclusion of leases.
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Lease make-good

-

-

Onerous contract

-

-

Total current portion

-

-

Total provisions

-

-

Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Balance at 1 July

-

451

Additional provisions made – onerous contract

-

-

Current Provisions are represented by:

Movements for each class of provision are as follows:

Provisions used

-

(390)

Provision reversed

-

(61)

Balance at 30 June 2014

-

-

15. Borrowings
The EPA did not enter into other borrowing arrangements or financial leases in 2013-14.
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16. Equity
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

14,228

13,922

General funds
Balance at 1 July
Repayment of capital

-

(1,000)

(1,226)

1,306

13,002

14,228

Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

(1,226)

1,306

1,546

1,516

1,546

1,516

(Gains) / losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment

142

14

Total items classified as investing or financing activities

142

14

(2,883)

(164)

Prepayment

(68)

(23)

Creditors and other payables

524

(116)

Provisions – onerous contract

-

(451)

Operating Lease – movements

(70)

563

Employee entitlements

105

159

Net movements in working capital items

(2,392)

(32)

Net cash from operating activities

(1,930)

2,804

Surplus / (deficit)
Total equity 30 June

17. Reconciliation of net surplus / (deficit) to net cash from
operating activities

Net surplus / (deficit) after tax
Add/(less) non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Total non-cash items
Add / (less) items classified as investing or financing activities:

Add / (less) movement in working capital items:
Debtors and other receivables
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18. Capital commitments and operating leases
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

43

-

4,272

196

4,315

196

Capital commitments
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total capital commitments

Capital commitments represent capital expenditure contracted for at balance date but not yet incurred. The intangible
assets commitment represents the contract signed for the development of the New Zealand Emission Unit Register.
Operating leases as lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be paid under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Not later than one year

1,157

1,155

Later than one year and not later than five years

4,628

4,623

Later than five years

2,317

3,470

8,102

9,248

Total non-cancellable operating leases

Operating lease commitments relate only to Grant Thornton House, in which the EPA occupies five floors with two rights
of renewal to 2027.
Operating leases as a liability
In accordance with New Zealand International Accountant Standards (NZ IAS) 17 – Leases, the EPA has spread the “rent
holiday period” over the life of the operating leases for the five floors at Grant Thornton House. This has created a liability
in the Statement of Financial Position.
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Accommodation lease

71

70

Total operating lease – current

71

70

Operating Lease – Current
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Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Accommodation lease

423

493

Total operating lease – non-current

423

493

Operating lease – non-current

19. Contingent assets or liabilities
The EPA is not aware of the existence of any contingent assets or liabilities as at 30 June 2014 (2013: nil).

20. Related-party transactions and key management personnel
The EPA is a wholly owned entity of the Crown. The Government influences the roles of the entity as well as being its
major source of revenue.
Significant transactions with government-related entities
The EPA has been provided with funding from the Crown of $22.492 million (2013: $22.137 million) for specific purposes
as set out in its founding legislation and the scope of the relevant government appropriations. In addition, revenue
earned from New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) through cost recovery of expenses related to Resource Management
Act applications was $4.855 million (2013: $2.753 million). The amount receivable from NZTA at 30 June 2014 was
$1,729,000 (2013: $523,000).
Collectively, but not individually, significant, transactions with government-related entities
In conducting its activities, the EPA is required to pay various taxes and levies (such as GST, FBT, PAYE, and ACC levies) to
the Crown and entities related to the Crown. The payment of these taxes and levies, other than income tax, is based on
the standard terms and conditions that apply to all tax and levy payers. The EPA is exempt from paying income tax.
The EPA also purchases goods and services from entities controlled, significantly influenced, or jointly controlled
by the Crown. Purchases from these government-related entities for the year ended 30 June 2014 totalled $1,427,000
(2013: $659,000). These purchases included air travel from Air New Zealand and postal services from New Zealand Post.
Key management personnel
There were no transactions entered into during the year with key management personnel.
No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised for impairment of receivables from related parties.
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Key management personnel compensation
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

1,406

1,349

Post-employment benefit

-

-

Other long-term benefit

-

-

Termination benefits

-

-

Board remuneration

201

195

Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao remuneration

116

87

81

115

389

-

2,193

1,746

Salaries, fees and other short-term employee benefits

Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Committee remuneration
EEZ Decision-making Committee remuneration
Total key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel include all the Board, Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao, the HSNO Committee and the EEZ
Decision-making Committee members, the Chief Executive and the six members of the Executive Leadership Team.

21. Board member and EEZ Decision-making committee remuneration
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Board
2

Kerry Prendergast

Chair

48

48

Kevin Thompson

Deputy Chair (appointed August 2012)

26

23

4

Richard Woods

Deputy Chair (term ended August 2012)

-

3

4

David Faulkner

Member (term ended March 2013)

-

16

3

Anake Goodall

Member (resigned in June 2014)

19

21

Tim Lusk

Member

21

21

3

Graham Pinnell

Member (term ended October 2013)

7

21

Taria Tahana

Member

21

21

Gillian Wratt

Member

21

21

1

Andrew Dadelszen

Member (appointed July 2013)

21

-

1

Nicola Crauford

Member (appointed October 2013)

15

-

1

Kura Denness

Member (appointed June 2014)

2

-

201

195
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Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Ngā Kaihautū TikaNgA Taiao
1

Steven (Tīpene) Wilson

Chair (appointed Chair July 2013)

28

12

1

Nick Roskuge

Deputy Chair (appointed July 2013)

15

20

James Ataria

Member

15

17

Glenice Paine

Member

17

13

James Doherty

Member

16

14

Wharemāwhai Mina Timutimu

Member

1

Marino Tahi

Member (appointed March 2013)

1

Kelly May

Member (appointed October 2013)

9

10

12

1

4

-

116

87

17

17

-

1

16

21

5

16

Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Committee
2

Kevin Thompson*

Chair (appointed August 2012)

4

Richard Woods*

Chair (term ended August 2012)

Helen Atkins

Member

Val Orchard

Member (resigned August 2013)

3

Deborah Read

Member

7

11

Shaun Ogilvie

Member

8

18

1

Damian Stone

Member (appointed July 2013)

6

7

1

Kerry Laing

Member (appointed July 2013)

11

13

1

Louise Malone

Member (appointed July 2013)

5

6

5

Gillian Wratt*

Antifouling paints re-assessment (2013 only)

-

5

1

John Taylor

Member (appointed November 2013)

6

-

81

115

EEZ Decision-Making Committee
1

Brett Rogers

Member (appointed October 2013)

1

David Hill

Member (appointed May 2014)

70

-

6

-

1

Gillian Wratt*

Member (appointed October 2013)

42

-

1

Greg Hill

Member (appointed October 2013)

84

-

1

Greg Ryder

Member (appointed May 2014)

10

-

1

Lennie Johns

Member (appointed May 2014)

9

-

1

Neil Walter

Member (appointed May 2014)

12

-

1

Nicola Crauford*

Member (appointed May 2014)

9

-

1

Stephen Christensen

Member (appointed October 2013)

55

-

1

William Kapea

Member (appointed October 2013)

92

-

389

–

787

397

Total Board members’ remuneration

EPA ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014

77

Key:

1= appointed in current year

4= term ended in previous year

2= appointed in previous year

5= Antifouling paints re-assessment only

3= term ended in current year
Note *: Board members who sat in the Hazardous Substance and New Organisms Committee and the EEZ Decision-making Committee received additional fees.

22. Employee remuneration
The number of employees or former employees who received remuneration and other benefits of $100,000 or more
within specified $10,000 bands were as follows:
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

$100,000 – $109,999

9

7

$110,000 – $119,999

7

12

$120,000 – $129,999

3

-

$130,000 – $139,999

4

1

Total remuneration paid or payable:

$140,000 – $149,999

-

1

$150,000 – $159,999

-

1

$160,000 – $169,999

1

2

$170,000 – $179,999

1

1

$180,000 – $189,999

3

2

$190,000 – $199,999

1

-

$310,000 – $319,999

-

1

$320,000 – $329,999

1

-

30

28

Total employees

The total remuneration and other benefits of the Chief Executive were in the $320,000 to $329,999 band (2013: $310,000
to $319,000 band).
During the year ended 30 June 2014, three employees received $34,000 in compensation or other benefits in relation
cessation (2013: nil). No Board member received any compensation or other benefits in relation to cessation (2013: nil).

23. Indemnity
The Board has insurance cover against loss caused by the wrongful acts or omissions of test certifiers approved by the
Board under the HSNO Act where those acts or omissions occurred in a professional capacity in respect of test certifiers’
duties under the HSNO Act. In addition, the Board has agreed to indemnify members (as well as members of Ngā
Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao, members of HSNO Committee, external experts co-opted onto decision-making committees and
EPA employees) in relation to acts or omissions made in good faith and in the performance or intended performance of
the EPA’s functions. The Board has insurance cover for personal accident and travel risks associated with overseas travel
for members of the Board and staff.
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24. Events after the balance sheet date
No significant events occurred between 30 June 2014 (2013: nil) and the date of signing the financial statements that
would materially affect the financial statements.

25. Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities in each of the NZ IAS 39 categories are as follows:
Actual
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

Cash and cash equivalents

2,067

3,826

Debtors and other receivables

1,809

377

Accrued revenue

2,227

712

Loans and receivables

Accrued interest
Other financial assets
Total loans and receivables

55

89

4,400

6,500

10,558

11,504

2,602

2,049

-

-

2,602

2,049

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Creditors and other payables
Borrowings
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

26. Financial instrument risks
The EPA’s activities expose it to a variety of financial instrument risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The EPA has a number of policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments to minimise exposure. These
policies do not allow any transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered into.
Market risk
The interest rates on the EPA’s investments are disclosed in Note 9.
Fair value interest rate risk
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The EPA’s exposure to fair value interest rate risk is limited to its bank deposits which are held at fixed rates
of interest. The EPA does not actively manage its exposure to fair value interest rate risk.
Cash flow interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Investments issued at variable interest rates expose the EPA to cash flow interest rate risk.
The EPA’s investment policy requires a spread of investment maturity dates to limit exposure to short-term interest rate
movements. The EPA currently has no variable interest rate investments.
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Sensitivity analysis
If the average daily bank interest rate had been 50 basis points lower for the year ended 30 June 2014, with all other
variables held constant, the deficit for the year would have been $37,000 higher (2013: surplus would be $49,000 lower).
Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates.
The EPA has no significant exposure to foreign currency risks as most of its financial instruments are denominated in
New Zealand dollars, with only $24,000 (2013: $47,000) denominated in US dollars.
Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. The EPA
has no financial instrument that is exposed to changes in market prices.
Credit risk
A credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to the EPA, causing the EPA to incur a loss.
The EPA has processes in place to review the credit quality of customers prior to the granting of credit.
Due to the timing of its cash inflows and outflows, the EPA invests surplus cash with Westpac Banking Corporation. The
EPA’s investment policy allows the investment of cash with other registered banks with a Standard and Poor’s credit
rating of AA- or higher.
The EPA’s maximum credit exposure for each class of financial instrument is represented by the total carrying amount of
cash and cash equivalents (Note 7), net debtors (Note 8), and term deposits (Note 9). There is no collateral held as security
against these financial instruments, including those instruments that are overdue or impaired.
The EPA has significant concentrations of credit risk from a limited number of parties, through the cost recovery of
expenses related to the Resource Management Act and the Exclusive Economic Zone Act applications. The EPA has no
significant concentration of credit risk from other operations, as it only invests funds with registered banks with specified
Standard and Poor’s credit ratings.
Contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities, excluding derivatives
The table below analyses the EPA’s financial liabilities (excluding derivatives) into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flow

Less than
6 months

6-12
months

Later than
1 year

2,049

2,049

2,049

-

-

2,602

2,602

2,602

-

-

2013
Creditors and other payables (Note12)
2014
Creditors and other payables (Note 12)

The EPA does not have any derivative financial instruments (2013: nil).
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27. Capital management
The EPA’s capital is its equity, which comprises accumulated funds and other reserves. Equity is represented by net assets.
The EPA is subject to the financial management and accountability provisions of the Crown Entities Act 2004, which impose
restrictions in relation to borrowings, acquisition of securities, issuing guarantees and indemnities and the use of derivatives.
The EPA manages its equity as a by-product of prudently managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments,
and general financial dealings to ensure the EPA effectively achieves its objectives and purpose, while remaining a
going concern.

28. Explanation of significant variances against budget
Explanations for significant variations from EPA budget figures in the Statement of Intent are as follows:
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Total revenue
Overall, the increase in revenue of $2,425,000 was due mainly to greater cost recovery from Nationally Significant
Proposal applications.
Personnel costs
The increase in personnel costs of $708,000 was due to the employment of more temporary staff to work on the
Nationally Significant Proposals.
Board members’ remuneration
The increase of $6,000 was due to more time spent on activities by the Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao committee.
EEZ Decision-making Committee remuneration
The decrease of $739,000 was due to the receipt of a lower number of EEZ applications.
Boards of Inquiry fees
The increase in the Boards of Inquiry fees of $343,000 was due to more hearing days for Nationally Significant
Proposal applications.
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
The redevelopment of the ETS Registry commenced later than the original plan, and this, as well as the delay in the
development of HSNO databases reduced the depreciation charge for the year by $207,000.
Other expenses
The increase was mainly due to higher consultant expenses, more domestic travel, and greater publication and other
expenses of $1,524,000. The increase in these expenses was related mainly to more hearing days for Nationally Significant
Proposal applications.
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Statement of Financial Position
Cash and cash equivalents
More cash was used for the increase in investment in term deposits.
Non-current assets
Non-current assets were less than budget by $36,000, mainly due to less capital spent on computer equipment and
software development.
Employee entitlements
Employee entitlements were more than budget by $149,000 largely due to more accruals for salaries and wages,
and for leave.
Creditors and other payables
Creditors and other payables were more than budget by $582,000 mainly due to more accruals of expenses at year-end.
Operating lease
The liability was created as a result of complying with NZIAS 17-leases.
Statement of Changes in Equity
Surplus / deficit for the year
The operating result for the year was a deficit of $1,226,000 compared to a budgeted deficit of $2,016,000. The budget
variances are explained in the variations of the statement of comprehensive income above.
Statement of Changes in Cash Flows
Receipts from other revenue were less than budget mainly due to more revenue accruals for cost recovery of Nationally
Significant Proposals and EEZ applications expenses at year end. The higher cost-recovery revenue led to higher cash
outflow for personnel costs and payments to suppliers.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the readers of the Environmental Protection
Authority’s financial statements and nonfinancial performance information for the year
ended 30 June 2014.
The Auditor-General is the auditor of the Environmental
Protection Authority (the EPA). The Auditor-General has
appointed me, Robert Cox, using the staff and resources of
Audit New Zealand, to carry out the audit of the financial
statements and non-financial performance information of
the EPA on her behalf.
We have audited:
the financial statements of the EPA on pages 53 to 81,
that comprise the statement of financial position as at
30 June 2014, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the
financial statements that include accounting policies
and other explanatory information; and
the non-financial performance information of the EPA
that comprises the statement of service performance
on pages 24 to 42 and the report about impacts on
pages 15 to 19.
Opinion
In our opinion:
the financial statements of the EPA on pages 53 to 81:
– comply with generally accepted accounting
practice in New Zealand; and
– fairly reflects the EPA’s:
– financial position as at 30 June 2014; and
– financial performance and cash flows for the year
ended on that date.
the non-financial performance information of the EPA
on pages 24 to 42 and 15 to 19:
– complies with generally accepted accounting
practice in New Zealand; and
– fairly reflects the EPA’s service performance and
impacts for the year ended 30 June 2014,
including for each class of outputs:
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– its service performance compared with forecasts
in the statement of forecast service performance
at the start of the financial year; and
– its actual revenue and output expenses
compared with the forecasts in the statement of
forecast service performance at the start of the
financial year.
Our audit was completed on 31 October 2014. This is the
date at which our opinion is expressed.
The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition,
we outline the responsibilities of the Board and our
responsibilities, and we explain our independence.
Basis of opinion
We carried out our audit in accordance with the AuditorGeneral’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand).
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements and non-financial performance information are
free from material misstatement.
Material misstatements are differences or omissions of
amounts and disclosures that, in our judgement, are likely
to influence readers’ overall understanding of the financial
statements and non-financial performance information.
If we had found material misstatements that were not
corrected, we would have referred to them in our opinion.
An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements and non-financial performance
information. The procedures selected depend on our
judgement, including our assessment of risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements and nonfinancial performance information, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the preparation of the EPA’s
financial statements and non-financial performance
information that fairly reflect the matters to which they
relate. We consider internal control in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
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but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the EPA’s internal control.
An audit also involves evaluating:
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
whether they have been consistently applied;
the reasonableness of the significant accounting
estimates and judgements made by the Board;
the appropriateness of the reported non-financial
performance information within the EPA’s framework
for reporting performance;
the adequacy of all disclosures in the financial
statements and non-financial performance information;
and
the overall presentation of the financial statements and
non-financial performance information.
We did not examine every transaction, nor do we
guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements
and non-financial performance information. Also we did
not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic
publication of the financial statements and non-financial
performance information.
We have obtained all the information and explanations we
have required and we believe we have obtained sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Responsibilities of the Board

for the publication of the financial statements and nonfinancial performance information, whether in printed or
electronic form.
The Board’s responsibilities arise from the Crown Entities
Act 2004.
Responsibilities of the Auditor
We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion
on the financial statements and non-financial performance
information and reporting that opinion to you based on
our audit. Our responsibility arises from section 15 of the
Public Audit Act 2001 and the Crown Entities Act 2004.
Independence
When carrying out the audit, we followed the
independence requirements of the Auditor-General,
which incorporate the independence requirements of the
External Reporting Board.
Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or
interests in the EPA.

Robert Cox
Audit New Zealand
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Wellington, New Zealand

The Board is responsible for preparing financial statements
and non-financial performance information that:
comply with generally accepted accounting practice
in New Zealand;
fairly reflect the EPA’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows; and
fairly reflect its service performance and impacts.
The Board is also responsible for such internal control
as is determined necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements and non-financial performance
information that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. The Board is also responsible
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New organism decisions made by Institutional Biological
Safety Committees (IBSCs) under delegated authority
during 2013-14 as at 30 June 2014
IBSCs in academic and research institutions and within industry are authorised to undertake decision-making functions
for applications relating to low-risk genetically-modified organisms in containment.
In 2013-14, no decisions by IBSCs involved biological material derived from native flora/fauna or biological material
derived from Māori DNA.
New organism decisions made by IBSCs under delegated authority for 2013-14
Total decisions
notified 2013-14

Total decisions
notified 2012-13

GMO development in containment – rapid assessment

1

2

GMO import into containment – rapid assessment

0

0

Minor or technical amendments

3

8

Sub total

4

10

GMO development in containment – rapid assessment

2

4

GMO import into containment – rapid assessment

2

2

Minor or technical amendments

5

2

Sub total

9

8

GMO development in containment – rapid assessment

5

5

GMO import into containment – rapid assessment

2

3

Minor or technical amendments

5

5

12

13

GMO development in containment – rapid assessment

1

5

GMO import into containment – rapid assessment

2

5

Minor or technical amendments

0

1

Sub total

4

11

29

42

IBSC Application type

Lincoln University

Massey University

University of Auckland

Sub total
University of Otago

TOTAL
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Appendix 2
Incidents and inquiries during 2013-14
Incidents involving new organisms and hazardous substances are defined as events that may cause adverse effects
to human health and safety or to the environment, and include instances of non-compliance. The data on incidents
collected by the EPA comes from enforcement agencies, from the New Zealand Fire Service, or through media
monitoring.
The EPA monitors new organism and hazardous substance incidents in order to:
determine the adequacy of the controls placed on approved organisms and substances
assess whether the HSNO Act is effective in preventing harm to human health and the environment.

Incident levels
Incidents are categorised based on the severity of the effect that occurs, taking into account the nature and particular
circumstances of the incident. There are five levels of incident: Level 1 (minimal), Level 2 (minor), Level 3 (moderate), Level
4 (major), and Level 5 (massive). See page 90 for more details on incident levels.

New organism incidents 2013-14
Number of new organism incidents, including genetically modified organisms, in 2013-14
and 2012-13
2013-14

2012-13

Level 1

2

0

Level 2

29

34

Total

31

34

Note 1: Three incidents in 2013-14 were related to damage caused to containment facilities. There was no release of new organisms or genetically modified
organisms.
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Further information
Zoo animal incidents in 2013-14
Description

Total zoo animal incidents

Number

20

Escape from the physical enclosure

8

Escape from containment facility

6

Result in adverse effect on people

5

Incident involving members of the public but no adverse effect

1

Genetically modified organisms incidents in 2013-14
Description

Number

Total genetically modified organisms incidents

6

Escape or release into the wider environment

1

Incidents not related to containment facilities 2013-14
There were four incidents not related to containment facilities. One concerned the smuggling into the country of cichlid
fish, which were subsequently destroyed. The second incident involved a continuing investigation into the possible
illegal import of Datura metel (devil’s trumpet/angel’s trumpet/Indian thorn apple), a flowering plant that is toxic to
people and animals. The third involved the use of biotechnology kits that can produce genetically modified organisms.
The last was in relation to the import of an unapproved genetically modified organism. None of the incidents resulted in
adverse effects to the environment or the health and safety of the public.
More detailed information on the incidents reported can be found on our website.
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Hazardous substance incidents 2013-14
There were 1,100 incidents involving hazardous substances reported to the EPA during the year (2012-13: 1,476), of which
more than 95 percent were categorised as Level 1 (2012-13: 98 percent).
The lower number this year is the result of better recording and analysis of incidents. Fuel tank leaks, batteries and other
manufactured articles have largely been removed from the data.
There were 17 incidents categorised as Level 3 (moderate) this year and none at higher levels. In 2012-13 there were 12
incidents at Level 3. The nature of the incidents is comparable to previous years. In summary:
most incidents resulted from spills or leakages
most incidents occurred in workplaces or public places
the most common substances associated with the incidents were petrol, diesel, hydrocarbon gases (including LPG)
and fireworks.
More detailed information on the incidents reported can be found on our website.
Type of hazardous substance incidents 2013-14
Type

2013-14

%

2012-13

Spill/Leakages

711

65

930 (63%)

Fires

312

28

496 (34%)

Other

66

6

30 (2%)

Explosions

10

<1

17 (1%)

Spray Drift

1

<1

3 (<1%)

1,100

100%

1,476

Total
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Location of hazardous substance incidents 2013-14
Location of incident

2013-14

%

2012-13

Public space

582

39

685

Work

490

33

491

Motor vehicle

165

11

375

Private dwelling

222

15

309

Other

28

2

88

Train

3

<1

10

Aircraft

3

<1

4

Ship

2

<1

1

1,495

100%

1,963

Total
Note: incidents can have more than one location.

Common substances associated with hazardous substance incidents 2013-14
Number of incidents with reported:
Substance

No. of incidents 2013-14

Effects on people

Environmental effects

Hydrocarbon gases including LPG

304

8

108

Fireworks/other accelerant-related fires

247

5

192

Petrol

158

5

51

Diesel

36

1

13

Acids

30

5

8

Ammonia

30

0

10

Compressed gases

25

0

6

Chlorine

23

4

7

Liquid hydrocarbons excl. petrol and diesel

16

0

5

Agrichemicals

18

5

6

Mercury

13

1

3

Alkali

9

3

3

Other

191

-

-

1,100

37

412

Total
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Table of Incident Category and Level for HSNO
Incident Category
And Level

Factors

0

Insufficient
information Further information required to assess incident level.
to assess

1

Minimal

People
Mild reversible short-term adverse health effects to individuals in highly localised area.
Environment
Highly localised and contained environmental impact, affecting a few (less than ten)
animals; no discernible ecosystem impact.
Economic
Some damage to property with possible disruption to businesses.
Community
None or minor social disruption; building evacuated.
Controls
Adequate, involved human error or breach of controls.

2

Minor

People
Mild reversible short-term adverse health effects to discrete groups; minor injuries not
requiring hospitalisation.
Environment
Localised and contained reversible environmental impact; some local plant or animal
communities temporarily damaged; no discernible ecosystem impact or species damage.
Economic
Local short-term adverse economic effects on small organisations (businesses,
individuals); temporary job losses; damage to property.
Community
Social disruption to a community; multiple buildings or street evacuated.
Controls
Adequate, involved human error or breach of controls.
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Incident Category
And Level

Factors

3

People

Moderate

Serious harm to individuals and/or reversible medium-term adverse health effects to
community (requiring hospitalisation); one death.
Environment
Measurable long-term damage to local plant and animal communities, but no obvious
spread beyond defined boundaries; medium-term individual ecosystem damage; no
species damage.
Economic
Regional adverse economic effects on small organisations (businesses, individuals);
temporary job losses; damage to property.
Community
Social disruption to a community; surrounding area evacuated.
Controls
Involves human error or significant breach of controls; controls appear adequate
Some public interest.
4

Major

People
Serious harm to individuals and/or reversible adverse health effects reaching beyond the
immediate community; more than one death.
Environment
Long-term/irreversible damage to localised ecosystem but no species loss.
Economic
Medium-term (one to five years) regional adverse economic effects with some national
implications; medium-term job losses; significant property damage.
Community
Social disruption to a community, including larger scale evacuations.
Controls
Involves a system/control failure or lack of adequate controls.
Public or political interest requiring an inquiry.

5

Massive

People
Significant irreversible adverse health effects reaching beyond the immediate community
and/or multiple deaths.
Environment
Extensive irreversible ecosystem damage, including species loss.
Economic
Measurable adverse effect on GDP; some long-term (more than five years) job losses.
Community
Major social disruption with entire surrounding area evacuated and impacts on
wider community.
Controls
Involves a substantial system/control failure resulting in public or political outrage.
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Appendix 3
New organism and hazardous substance applications:
further information
New organism decisions – Part 5
Note: This table presents information on application numbers processed by the EPA. Decisions by IBSCs are not shown
here, see Appendix 1.

Application type

Forecast
numbers
2013-14

Actual
numbers
2013-14

% met all
statutory
timeframes
2013-141

% met all
statutory
timeframes
2012-13

New organism release (includes full and conditional)
Notified

4

3

100%

100%

Rapid

1

1

100%

N/A

Notified

0

0

N/A

N/A

Non-notified

4

3

100%

100%

Rapid

0

0

N/A

N/A

New organism containment

Genetically-modified organism (GMO) release (includes full and conditional)
Notified

0

0

N/A

N/A

Rapid

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

N/A

100%

GMO containment (includes developments and imports)
Notified
Non-notified
Rapid

2

3

100%

100%

10

5

100%

100%

1

0

N/A

100%

7

5

N/A

N/A2

29

20

Forecast 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Actual 2012-13

0

7

11

30

34

36

30

46

42

1

1

1

Transhipment (GMO or New Organism)
Transhipment
Determination of New Organism status
Determination
Total
Note 1: Includes those with time waivers granted under section 59.
Note 2: N/A: No statutory time frame requirements.
Application Type

Other: non-statutory activity
Amendment of existing approvals
Non-statutory advice of status in New Zealand
Institutional Biological Safety Committee activity
Monitoring of IBSC decisions by the EPA
Audit of IBSC delegation
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Number of hazardous substance decisions and advice – Part 5 and 6a

Forecast 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

% met all
statutory
timeframes
2013-14

5

9

100%

100%

Non-notified

20

40

100%

100%

Rapid

30

34

100%

100%

15

17

100%

100%

0

0

N/A

N/A

5

9

100%

100%

Grounds

3

3

N/A

N/A

Modified

2

0

100%

66%

Full

1

0

100%

100%

Externally generated

2

0

N/A

100%

Internally generated

0

0

N/A

N/A

Amendments

2

1

N/A

N/A

Application type

% met all
statutory
timeframes
2012-13

Import or manufacture for release
Notified

Import or manufacture in containment
Non-notified
Emergency use applications
Special emergency
Transhipment
Transhipment of hazardous substance
Reassessments

Group standards

Other
Amendment of existing approval

10

2

N/A

N/A

5

0

N/A

N/A

Total

100

115

Non-statutory advice – Status of substances

550

378

N/A

N/A

3

5

N/A

N/A

553

383

Statutory determination on a substance

Non-statutory advice – Product labelling
Total non-statutory advice
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Number of hazardous substance decisions – Part 6

Forecast 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

% met all
statutory
timeframes
2013-14

Initial approvals

10

6

100%

100%

Renewals

20

20

100%

97%

Application type

% met all
statutory
timeframes
2012-13

Test certifiers

Extensions

15

18

100%

71%

Periodic testers approvals

55

61

100%

93%

6

12

N/A

N/A

20

37

N/A

N/A

Approvals
Burners
Compliance Plans (tanks and secondary containment)
Dispensers

3

2

N/A

N/A

Disused tanks

5

10

N/A

N/A

Vaporisers

0

1

N/A

N/A

5

2

N/A

N/A

900

812

N/A

N/A

1

0

N/A

N/A

180

167

N/A

N/A

80

76

N/A

N/A

Pre-commissioning requirements for cylinders

83

59

N/A

N/A

Fire-fighting facility requirements

10

7

N/A

N/A

Reduction of separation distances

25

21

N/A

N/A

Waivers for secondary containment

5

1

N/A

N/A

Clearance of imported cylinder fittings

2

0

N/A

N/A

10

4

N/A

N/A

1,435

1,316

-

-

Permissions and Licences
Permissions
Controlled Substance Licences
Test Certificates
Extension of Location Test Certificate
Explosives
Standard explosives import Certificate
Novelty fireworks import Certificate
Waivers

Codes of Practice
Approved Codes of Practice
Total
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Number of ozone-depleting substances decisions
Application type

Special permit to import HCFCs Regulation 9A
HCFC wholesaler import Regulation 11
Import HCFC Regulation 9

Forecast 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Actual 2012-13

1

8

6

4

5

5
160

41 Approvals 106 Approvals
0 Declines
5 Declines

Export permit Regulation 23

20

19

23

Import exemption Regulation 33

30

24

32

Methyl Bromide wholesaler import Regulation 7(1)
Methyl Bromide replacement Regulation 7(3)
Total

1

3

2

10

9

8

227

108

187

Note: Import Hydrochlorofluorocarbon (HCFC) Regulation 9 permits are currently being phased out and will not be issued after December 2014. It was predicted that
this would create an increased number of applications before this date. However, this had not happened up to the end of June 2014.

Import/export permits
Application type

Forecast 2013-14

Actual 2013-14

Actual 2012-13

Import hazardous waste

35

33

40

Export hazardous waste

40

26

29

Transit of hazardous waste

10

7

10

Total

85

66

79
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Appendix 4
Legislation fully or partly administered by the EPA
as at 30 June 2014
Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Act 1988 and Prohibition Order (No 2) 2004
Resource Management Act 1991
Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996
Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996
Climate Change Response Act 2002
Exclusive Economic Zone and Continental Shelf (Environmental Effects) Act 2012
The EPA is classified as a Crown Agent under the Crown Entities Act 2004. This means that it is required to give effect to
Government policy relating to its functions and objectives, if so directed.
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Environmental User Charges
The EPA Board may, under the HSNO Act, consider imposing an environmental user charge as an alternative to or
in addition to controls in granting an approval for a hazardous substance. The EPA Board did not consider imposing
environmental user charges in the 2013-14 year. With all approvals granted to date, it was considered that the use of
controls is the most effective means of managing the risks throughout the lifecycles of the substances approved.
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Appendix 6
Terms and abbreviations
Board of Inquiry

Independent Board appointed by the Minister for the Environment (the Minister) to
decide applications of national significance under the RMA. It must include no fewer
than three and no more than five members, and the Chair must be a current, former or
retired Environment Court judge or a retired High Court judge. Decisions of the Board of
Inquiry are not made by the EPA.

Call in

The ability of the Minister to direct that an application be decided by a different decision
maker in some situations.
Under the HSNO Act, the Minister can direct that he or she will decide the application if
the Minister considers that the application will have significant effects or that there are
significant effects in an area that the EPA lacks sufficient knowledge or experience.
Under the RMA, the Minister can direct that a matter which he or she considers is
nationally significant be decided by a Board of Inquiry or the Environment Court. If the
matter is partly or fully in the coastal marine area, the Minister of Conservation will also
have a role in the direction.

CCRA

Climate Change Response Act 2002.

EEZ

The Exclusive Economic Zone and Continental Shelf.

Emissions Trading Scheme

The system in which New Zealand Units are traded in accordance with the Climate
Change Response Act 2002. Effectively, one New Zealand Unit allows the holder to emit
one metric tonne of carbon dioxide-equivalent.

ETS

Emissions Trading Scheme.

Generic approvals

Approvals covering a broad range of organisms or substances that fall into the same or
similar risk categories.

Genetically modified
organism

Any organism whose genetic material has been modified by in vitro techniques.

HSNO Act

The Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996.

HSNO Committee

A committee of the EPA which has delegated decision-making powers relating to
applications made under the Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996.

Industrial allocation

An allocation of units to entities carrying out eligible activities to help them to manage
increased costs as a result of the ETS, while they make the changes necessary to reduce
their energy dependency and to adjust to emissions pricing.

Institutional Biological
Safety Committee (IBSC)

A committee set up by an approved institution that acts under delegation from the EPA.
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International conventions

New Zealand has obligations under a number of international environmental
agreements that require controls to be imposed on certain chemicals, hazardous waste,
ozone-depleting substances and new organisms. These conventions are:
Stockholm Convention on Persistent Organic Pollutants.
Rotterdam Convention on the Prior Informed Consent Procedure for Certain
Hazardous Chemicals and Pesticides in International Trade.
Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary Movements of Hazardous Waste
and their Disposal.
Waigani Convention (Convention to Ban the Importation into Forum Island Countries
of Hazardous and Radioactive Wastes and to Control the Transboundary Movement
and Management of Hazardous Wastes within the South Pacific Region).
Vienna Convention and Montreal Protocol on the protection of the ozone layer.
Cartagena Protocol on Biosafety to the Convention on Biological Diversity.

International Transaction
Log

An international log maintained by the Secretariat of the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change to confirm the validity of transactions, including the issue
and transfer of Kyoto units between registries and between accounts in the Register.

Kyoto Protocol

An international agreement under the United Nations Framework Convention on
Climate Change, to address the problem of climate change. It sets binding targets for
developed countries that ratify it, aimed at limiting the amount of greenhouse gases
they emit.

Kyoto Units

All of the unit types specified in, or in accordance with, the Kyoto Protocol.

Methodology

The Hazardous Substances and New Organisms (Methodology) Order 1998, a regulation
that the EPA must apply to decision making under Part 5 of the HSNO Act.

Nationally Significant
Proposals

An application made under the RMA that is determined by the Minister for the
Environment, the Minister of Conservation or both Ministers jointly, to be a proposal
or in part a proposal of national significance when evaluated against the factors of
national significance in section 142(3) of the RMA or other factors that the Minister(s)
consider relevant.

New organism

Any organism, including a genetically modified organism, that was not present in
New Zealand before 28 July 1998, the date on which the new organism elements of the
HSNO Act came into force.

NZEUR

New Zealand Emission Unit Register.

New Zealand Units

The primary unit of trade in the New Zealand Emissions Trading Scheme, issued by
the Crown. A New Zealand Emission Unit represents one metric tonne of carbon
dioxide equivalent.

NZU

New Zealand Unit.

OLPA

Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996 and Amendment Act 2011.
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Rapid assessment
(hazardous substances)

The EPA may make a rapid assessment if it is satisfied a new substance has a similar
composition and similar hazardous properties to an approved substance, where the
hazardous properties of the new substance are low, or where the new substance has
been formulated to be a lesser hazard than an approved substance. The HSNO Act
also provides for the rapid assessment and approval of hazardous substances in an
emergency or a “special emergency”.

Rapid assessment (new
organisms)

The EPA may make a rapid assessment if it is satisfied the information supplied meets
the prescribed criteria for the “release” of the new organism, or the development or
import of genetically modified organisms. In the latter case, the information provided
must be sufficient to meet the criteria for a low-risk genetic modification specified in
regulations made under section 41 of the HSNO Act.

Reassessment

Occurs when the grounds for reassessment under section 62 of the HSNO Act are
met. Reassessment means reviewing the risks, costs and benefits associated with
an approved substance or a new organism. As a result of the reassessment the EPA
may decide to change the controls placed on the approval or withdraw the approval
altogether.

Register

The New Zealand Emission Unit Register. All emission unit holdings are recorded in
the Register.

Registrar

The employee of the EPA appointed to operate the New Zealand Emission Unit Register.

RMA

Resource Management Act 1991.

Te Herenga

A group made up of Māori resource and environmental managers, practitioners or
experts who represent their iwi, hapū or Māori organisations on matters of relevance to
the activities and decision making of the EPA.

UNFCCC: United Nations
Framework Convention on
Climate Change

The international environmental treaty that records the agreement of parties to the
convention to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and creates the framework for doing
so. The Kyoto Protocol exists under this Convention.
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